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(Dollar amounts in thousands except per share data)  *not included in the consolidated assets of cbt financial corp.

SUmmARy Of CONSOLidATEd STATEmENT Of iNCOmE 2015 2014
interest income  $15,854  $15,564 

interest expense  2,072  2,275 

net interest income  13,782  13,289 

Provision for loan losses  475  (250)

total noninterest income  5,042  4,583 

total noninterest expense  14,023  13,965 

income before income taxes  4,326  4,157 

income taxes  995  974 

net income  $3,331  $3,183 

Preferred stock dividends  94  100 

net income available to common shareholders  $3,237  $3,083 

RATiOS
Return on average assets (Roaa) 0.77% 0.73%

Return on shareholders' equity (RoaE) 8.24% 9.16%

PER ShARE dATA
net income  $2.86  $3.10 

cash dividend declared  1.23  1.23 

cash dividend paid  1.23  1.23 

book value  32.47  34.71 

SUmmARy Of CONSOLidATEd BALANCE ShEET (at year end)

Securities  $73,189  $95,743 

loans  345,925  298,474 

total assets  455,559  431,710 

Deposits  364,140  363,094 

Shareholders' equity  46,935  44,531 

trust and financial services assets*  219,987  220,704 

financial highlightS

Our mission at Clearfield Bank and Trust Company is to create an environment in which:

Our Customers perceive the Bank as a partner in achieving their financial goals;

Our Employees may achieve personal and professional success; and

Our Shareholders achieve the rewards of ownership.

BLAiR COUNTy
a  moRRiSonS covE

2287 Curryville Road • Martinsburg, PA 16662
T: 814-793-0912 • F: 814-793-0911

b  williamSbuRg
101 High Street • Williamsburg, PA 16693
T: 814-832-2128 • F: 814-832-2120

CENTRE COUNTy
c  PinE gRovE millS

511 Pine Grove Road • State College, PA 16801
T: 814-238-0578 • F: 814-238-1959

CLEARfiELd COUNTy
D  bRiDgE StREEt

204 Bridge Street • Clearfield, PA 16830
T: 814-765-1645 • F: 814-765-2672

E  cuRwEnSvillE
407 Walnut Street • Curwensville, PA 16833
T: 814-236-2441 • F: 814-236-4650

f  DuboiS
91 Beaver Drive • DuBois, PA 15801
T: 814-371-1400 • F: 814-371-2903

g  golDEnRoD
1935 Daisy Street • Clearfield, PA 16830
T: 814-768-5200 • F: 814-768-5206

h  main officE
11 North 2nd Street • Clearfield, PA 16830
T: 814-765-7551 • F: 814-765-2943

i  PhiliPSbuRg
19 Irwin Drive Extension • Philipsburg, PA 16866
T: 814-342-5750 • F: 814-342-7321

hUNTiNGdON COUNTy
J  huntingDon Downtown

500 Penn Street • Huntingdon, PA 16652
T: 814-643-8042 • F: 814-643-8088

K  huntingDon Plaza
9585 William Penn Hwy. • Huntingdon, PA 16652
T: 814-643-0350 • F: 814-643-8073

l  mount union
16 West Shirley Street • Mount Union, PA 17066
T: 814-542-2591 • F: 814-542-4074
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DEAR ShAREhOLDERS, 
CUSTOmERS AND FRiENDS,

We are pleased to share the consolidated financial results of CBT 

Financial Corp. and its subsidiary Clearfield Bank & Trust Company. 

The Corporation had record net income for the fiscal year ending (FYE) 

December 31, 2015 of $3.331million, an increase of 4.7% or $148 

thousand from net income of $3.183 million for FYE 2014. 

in FY 2015, our assets continued to grow at a steady pace and were 

$455.6 million at FYE 2015 compared to $431.7 million at FYE 2014. 

The increase in assets was supported primarily by net loan growth of 

15.9% or $47.5 million year over year. The Bank’s asset quality remains 

very sound with a non-performing asset to asset ratio of 0.24% and a 

charge off ratio of 0.16% at FYE 2015. Our provision for loan loss in FY 

2015 was $475 thousand. The Allowance for Loan Losses represents 

a 0.93% loan loss ratio and a coverage ratio of 288.7% at FYE 2015. 

This allocation is reasonable based on the high quality and growth of 

our loan portfolio.

mANAgEmENT TEAm 
Left to Right (below): Judith K. mitchell, 
William A. Shiner, michael J. Bibak, 
glenn E. Fisher, David m. mcKeown, 
Dennis E. hampton, William E. Wood, 
and Richard W. Ogden.

NEW CEO & PRESiDENT
New 2016 President and CEO, 
michael J. Bibak (above left) has 
worked closely with William E. Wood 
(former President and CEO, retired 
December 31, 2015) on all issues 
involving the Company and the Bank’s 
strategy objectives and performance.



2    CBT Financial Corp.

Total deposits increased slightly year over year and were $364.1 

million at FYE 2015. 

The Corporation’s Return on Average Equity of 8.24% and Return 

on Average Assets of 0.77% are both very strong and are notable 

considering the continued low interest rate environment and the 

continued pressure on net interest margin.

LOAN GROWTH
Loan growth was primarily centered in commercial loans. The Bank 

has a team of commercial lenders that have performed very well as 

evidenced by our credit quality and loan growth. in 2015, total loans 

grew by 15.9% or $47.5 million and our loan to deposit ratio improved 

from 82.2% to 95.0% year over year. We benefit greatly from the 

close relationships we have established with our borrowers, providing 

excellent service and advice.

CREDIT QUALITY
As mentioned earlier, the Bank’s ratio of non-performing assets to 

total assets at December 31, 2015 was 0.24% which was lower than 

the previous fiscal year end, demonstrating the very good asset quality 

of our loan portfolio. This is attributable to our sound underwriting and 

conservative lending as well as our ability to identify and manage 

problem credits.

TRANSITION
With the announced retirement of William E. Wood effective December 

31, 2015, the Board of Directors engaged in an extensive nine month 

search that concluded in march with the appointment of michael J. 

Bibak as President of the Company and the Bank. mr. Bibak is a senior 

level banking professional with 28 years of diverse banking experience. 

mike has experience at both large and small community and regional 

banks. he is a Scranton native and earned a Bachelor of Science in 

Business Administration from the University of Scranton in 1987 and 

is a graduate of the Pennsylvania Banker’s Association Executive 

Leadership program. mike has extensive experience in all areas of 

banking with functional duties in asset liability management, strategic 
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planning, retail and commercial lending. mike continues to work closely 

with Bill on all issues involving the Company and the Bank’s strategy 

objectives and performance. mr. Bibak will become President and 

CEO effective January 1, 2016 and mr. Wood will remain Chairman of 

the Board.

STRATEGIC PLAN
A new strategic plan, with the Board’s direct oversight, was developed 

to assist the new President & CEO and his senior leadership on the 

direction of the Bank through 2018. The plan focuses on specific strategic 

objectives that will enhance the growth and stability of the corporation. 

We will continue to build upon our strong base of loyal customers and 

improve our market share in the counties in which we operate. We have 

identified three specific markets where we will concentrate our efforts as 

well as explore opportunities to penetrate and gain market share in new 

markets. in addition to these specific goals, we want to re-energize our 

employees to focus on the Bank’s sales and service culture and reassess 

and improve our marketing and branding strategy.

BOARD OF DiRECTORS 
Standing Left to Right (below): Charles 
R. Johnston, Andrew J. Kohlhepp, Kevin 
D. mcmillen, michael R. Lytle, and John 
g. Soult, Jr.; Seated Left to Right: Paula 
m. Cherry, William E. Wood, michael J. 
Bibak, and marlene K. Sample.

A new strategic plan, 

with the Board’s direct 

oversight, was developed 

to assist the new 

President & CEO and 

his senior leadership on 

the direction of the Bank 

through 2018.
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We have also identified specific financial targets to enhance 

shareholder value while improving operational efficiency. This includes 

the review of all operating processes and procedures, rationalization of 

the branch network and effective utilization of technology.

in addition, several other initiatives have been identified that reflect 

our commitment to achieve profits from providing quality service to our 

customers and providing value to our shareholders.

PRIVATE PLACEmENT CAPITAL
We completed a very successful private capital raise in the third 

quarter of 2015 that generated $11.7 million in additional common equity 

through the issuance of 450,000 shares of common stock. The proceeds 

were used to support general operations and growth of the Company 

along with repaying the remaining balance of the Small Business 

Lending Fund. As a result, all of our capital ratios are very strong.

SmALL BUSINESS LENDING fUND (SBLf)
in 2011 the Company participated in the U.S, Treasury SBLF program 

to aid in lending activities to small business. With the rate scheduled to 

increase from 1% to 9% in 2016, the Company elected to redeem the 

Stock in 2015. in march 2015 we redeemed $5 million and in October 

2015 we redeemed the remaining $5 million. 
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mEET miKE
Name: michael J. Bibak

TiTle: President & CEO

HomeTowN: Throop, PA

educaTioN: Business 
Administration BS 
(University of Scranton, 1987)

experieNce: 28 years of 
banking experience, including 
both community banks and 
regional banks.

ASSET GROWTH
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COmmUNITY COmmITmENT
in addition to monetary contributions totaling over $135 thousand, 

our employees have a vested interest in our communities and their 

dedication is evident in the thousands of volunteer hours they give to 

local charities, economic development agencies, sports teams and 

religious organizations that directly benefit from our employees’ time 

and talents. 

We were also again a proud sponsor of  The education learning 

platform includes Financial Literacy, Student Loan management, 

Digital Literacy, Cyber Bullying and Alcohol Abuse Awareness. For the 

past three years, the Bank has proudly supported the EverFi Financial 

Literacy Program. EverFi, inc. is the leading education technology 

company to teach, assess and certify students in critical skills. This 

initiative reaches the digital age generation, our future, educating them 

on important financial information.

SHAREHOLDER VALUE
We are proud of the stability of our stock and reliable dividend that our 

Shareholders enjoy. This was the seventy second consecutive years we 

have paid a dividend and the dividend yield as of FYE 2015 was 4.71% 

based on a market share price of $26.10.

With sincere appreciation, we extend gratitude on behalf of our Board 

of Directors, management and employees for your continued support. 

 William E. Wood Michael J. Bibak 

 Chairman & CEO President 

...our employees have a vested 
interest in our communities and their 

dedication is evident in the thousands 
of volunteer hours they give to... 
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Consolidated BalanCe sheets   
as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 (Dollar and share amounts in thousands) 

 
Assets 2015 2014
 Cash and due from financial institutions $2,532 $2,847
 Interest-bearing deposits in other financial institutions 3,363 4,408
 securities available for sale 73,189 95,743
 loans held for sale - 114
 loans, net of allowance of $3,219 and $3,292 342,706 295,182
  federal Home loan bank stock, at cost 1,724 616
 foreclosed assets, net 558 -
 Premises and equipment, net 10,638 11,279
 Goodwill 9,760 9,760
 other intangible assets - 153
 bank owned life insurance 8,204 8,575
     accrued interest receivable and other assets 2,885 3,033
total assets $455,559 $431,710
  
LiAbiLities And sHAReHoLdeRs’ equity  
Liabilities  
 Deposits
  noninterest-bearing $67,321 $60,634
  Interest-bearing 296,819 302,460 
  total deposits 364,140 363,094 
   
 federal Home loan bank advances 28,700 8,800
 subordinated debentures 9,000 9,000
     accrued interest payable and other liabilities 6,784 6,285
  total liabilities 408,624 387,179 
    
shareholders’ equity  
 Preferred stock ($1 par value; non-cumulative; $10,000 liquidation
  value; 10,000 shares authorized; 10 shares issued) - 9,993
 Common stock (no par value; 
      10,000 shares authorized; 1,485 shares issued at 2015;
    1,034 at 2014) - -
 additional paid in capital 15,095 4,309
 Retained earnings 33,057 31,335
 accumulated other comprehensive income 350 461
 Treasury stock at cost (40 shares) (1,567) (1,567)
  total shareholders’ equity 46,935 44,531
total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $455,559 $431,710
  
See accompanying notes.
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Consolidated statements of inCome   
For the years-ended december 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 (Dollar amounts in thousands except per share data) 
  

inteRest And dividend inCome 2015 2014 2013 
 Taxable loans, including fees $13,854 $13,124 $13,452
 Tax exempt loans, including fees 293 325 311
 Taxable securities 899 1,238 1,294
 Tax exempt securities 710 798 876
 other interest earning assets 98 79 77
  total interest and dividend income 15,854 15,564 16,010

inteRest expense   
 Deposits 1,646 1,866 2,406
 federal Home loan bank advances 75 61 60 
    subordinated debentures 351 348 350
   total interest expense 2,072 2,275 2,816
 net interest income 13,782 13,289 13,194
 Provision for loan losses  475 (250) 350
  net interest income after provision for loan losses 13,307 13,539 12,844

noninteRest inCome   
 service charges on deposits 1,604 1,586 1,596
 Trust fees 916 875 710
 net gains on sales of securities 78 109 379
 Commissions on other financial products 510 517 458
 earnings on bank owned life insurance, including death benefit 460 234 236
 (loss) from sale of bank branches - (126) -
 other  1,474 1,388 1,411
  total noninterest income 5,042 4,583 4,790 

noninteRest expense   
 salaries and employee benefits 8,388 8,245 8,590
 occupancy and equipment 1,908 1,954 2,625
 Data processing 1,224 986 685
 advertising 279 314 334 
 Pennsylvania shares/franchise tax 327 374 365 
 supplies 240 263 249
 federal deposit insurance 281 228 227
 foreclosed assets 78 51 80
 amortization of intangibles 153 204 213
 other  1,145 1,346 1,143
  total noninterest expense 14,023 13,965 14,511
 Income before income taxes 4,326 4,157 3,123
 Income tax expense 995 974 598

net income $3,331 $3,183 $2,525 
 Preferred stock dividends  94 100 166 
net income available to common shareholders $3,237 $3,083 $2,359 
eARnings peR Common sHARe   
 basic $2.86 $3.10 $2.37

See accompanying notes.   
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Consolidated statements of ComPRehensiVe inCome   
For the years ended december 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 (Dollar amounts in thousands except per share data) 
  

   2015 2014 2013  
 net Income $3,331 $3,183 $2,525
other comprehensive income (loss)
  Unrealized gain (loss) on securities:     
  Unrealized holding gain (loss) arising during the period (294) 806 (2,796)
  Reclassification adjustments for loss (gain) included in net income  (78) (109) (379)
  Tax effect 126 (237) 1,079
  net of tax (246) 460 (2,096)

   
  Unrealized gain (loss) on cash flow hedge: 
  Unrealized holding gain (loss) 88 88 119     
  Reclassification adjustment for loss (gain) included in net income - - -
   Tax effect (30) (30) (40)
  net of tax 58 58 79
 
  Postretirement plans: 
 net gain (loss) arising during the period 117 (262) 295
  Reclassification adjustment for amortization of prior service
             cost and net (gain) loss included in net periodic pension cost - (4) 13
  Tax effect (40) 90 (105)
 net of tax 77 (176) 203
Total other comprehensive income (loss) (111) 342 (1,814)
Comprehensive income $3,220 $3,525 $711

See accompanying notes.
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Consolidated statements of Changes in shaReholdeRs’ equity
For the years-ended december 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 (Dollar and share amounts in thousands except per share data)  

        Accumulated
      Additional  other  total 
    preferred Common paid in Retained  Comprehensive treasury shareholders’
    stock stock Capital earnings   income (Loss) stock equity
     balance - January 1, 2013 $9,981 $ - $4,309  $28,354 $1,933 ($1,567) $43,010

   
   net income  - - 2,525 -  - 2,525
   other comprehensive income (loss)  - - - (1,814) - (1,814)
   amortization of preferred stock issuance cost  6 - - (6) - - - 
    Preferred dividends  - - (166) - - (166)
      Cash dividends declared ($1.23 per share)  - - (1,224) - - (1,224)
     balance - december 31, 2013 9,987 -  4,309 29,483  119 (1,567) 42,331

                
   net income  -  - 3,183 -  - 3,183
   other comprehensive income (loss)  - - - 342 - 342
   amortization of preferred stock issuance cost 6 - - (6) - - -  
   Preferred dividends  - - (100) - - (100)
   Cash dividends declared ($1.23 per share)  - - (1,225) - - (1,225)
     balance - december 31, 2014 9,993 - 4,309 31,335 461 (1,567) 44,531

    
   net income  - -  3,331 -  - 3,331
   other comprehensive income (loss)  - - - (111) - (111)  
   amortization of preferred stock issuance cost 7 - - (7) - - -
   Preferred dividends  - - (94) - - (94)
   Issuance of common stock, 
       net of issuance cost - - 10,786 - - - 10,786
   Redemption of preferred stock (10,000) - - - - - (10,000)  
   Cash dividends declared ($1.23 per share)  - - (1,508) - - (1,508)
     balance - december 31, 2015 $ - $ - $15,095 $33,057 $350 ($1,567) $46,935

     See accompanying notes.



2015 ANNUAL REPORT TO SHAREHOLDERS

6

Cash flows from operating activities 2015           2014        2013
 net income $3,331 $3,183 $2,525
 adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash 
   from operating activities   
  Provision for loan losses 475 (250) 350
   Depreciation and amortization  859 908 1,499
     net amortization of securities 457 519 635
  net realized gains on sale of securities  (78) (109) (379) 
  net losses on sales of foreclosed assets - 11 3
         earnings on bank owned life insurance (232) (234) (236)
        amortization of core deposit intangible assets 153 204 213
  Deferred income tax (113) 101 305
  Gross mortgage banking activity:  
   loans originated for resale (3,263) (2,225) (6,319)
   Proceeds from sales 3,479 2,160 6,504
   net gains on sales (102) (49) (185)
  net loss on sale of bank branches - 126 -
  net change in: 
   accrued interest receivable and other assets 261 (766) 606
   accrued interest payable and other liabilities 760 308 245
   net cash from operating activities 5,987 3,887  5,766 
Cash flows from investing activities   
 net change in interest-bearing deposits
   in other financial institutions 1,045 7,691 6,643
 Proceeds from bank owned life insurance benefit 603 - -
 available for sale securities:  
   sales  4,677 4,739 11,170 
  Maturities, prepayments and calls 17,376 20,542 18,656
  Purchases  (250) (22,509) (36,922)
 loan originations and payments, net (48,557) (16,084) (14,524)
 net Change in federal Home loan bank stock (1,108) 202 67
 Proceeds from sale of foreclosed assets - 175 318
 Proceeds from sale of bank branches - 102 - 
 net change to premises and equipment (218) (448) (3,665) 
   net cash from investing activities (26,432) (5,590) (18,257) 
Cash flows from financing activities   
 net change in deposits 1,046 (2,131) 9,749 
 Proceeds from federal Home loan bank advances, net 19,900 4,800 -
 Proceeds from common stock, net of issuance cost 10,786 - -
 Repayment of preferred stock (10,000) - -
 Cash dividends paid (1,602) (1,325) (1,390)
   net cash from financing activities 20,130 1,344 8,359
 net change in cash and cash equivalents (315) (359) (4,132)
 beginning cash and cash equivalents 2,847 3,206 7,338
   ending cash and cash equivalents $2,532 $2,847 $3,206
supplemental cash flow information   
     Interest paid $2,057 $2,320 $2,892
     Income taxes paid 828 630 545
supplemental non-cash disclosures   
     Transfer from loans to foreclosed assets $558 $109 $95
 Transfer of premises and equipment to assets held for sale - 227 -

See accompanying notes. 

Consolidated statements of Cash flows    
For the years-ended december 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 (Dollar amounts in thousands)     
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 1. summaRy of signifiCant aCCounting PoliCies:

 Nature of Operations and Principles of Consolidation 
  The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of CbT financial Corp. and its wholly-owned subsidiary, 
Clearfield bank & Trust Company (bank), together referred to as the Company.  Diamond financial services, Inc. is a 
wholly-owned subsidiary of the bank.  Intercompany transactions and balances are eliminated in consolidation.

 The bank provides financial services through its twelve community offices in Clearfield, blair, Centre and Huntingdon 
Counties, Pennsylvania.  Its primary deposit products are checking, savings, and term certificate accounts, and its primary 
lending products are residential mortgage, commercial, and consumer installment loans.  substantially all loans are secured 
by specific items of collateral including business assets, consumer assets, and commercial and residential real estate.  
Commercial loans are expected to be repaid from cash flow from operations of businesses.  There are no significant 
concentrations of loans to any one industry or customer.  However, the customers’ ability to repay their loans is dependent 
on the real estate and general economic conditions in the area.

 Diamond financial services, Inc. provides nondeposit investment products to its customers.  Its diversified products 
include mutual funds, and fixed and variable annunities.  

 Subsequent Events 
The Company has evaluated subsequent events for recognition and disclosure through february 5, 2016, which is the date 
the financial statements were available to be issued.

 
 Use of Estimates 

To prepare financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United states of 
america, management makes estimates and assumptions based on available information.  These estimates and assumptions 
affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and the disclosures provided, and actual results could differ.  

 Cash Flows 
Cash and cash equivalents include cash and noninterest-bearing demand deposits with other financial institutions.  net 
cash flows are reported for customer loan and deposit transactions, interest-bearing deposits in other financial institutions, 
fixed assets, federal Home loan bank stock and federal Home loan bank overnight borrowings. 

 Interest-Bearing Deposits in Other Financial Institutions 
Interest-bearing deposits in other financial institutions mature within one year and are carried at cost.

 Securities 
Debt securities are classified as held to maturity and carried at amortized cost when management has the positive intent 
and ability to hold them to maturity.  Debt securities are classified as available for sale when they might be sold before 
maturity.  equity securities with readily determinable fair values are classified as available for sale.  securities available for 
sale are carried at fair value, with unrealized holding gains and losses reported in other comprehensive income, net of tax. 

 Interest income includes amortization of purchase premium or discount.  Premiums and discounts on securities are 
amortized on the level-yield method without anticipating prepayments, except for mortgage backed securities where 
prepayments are anticipated.  Gains and losses on sales are recorded on the trade date and determined using the specific 
identification method.

 

notes to Consolidated finanCial statements
(Dollar and share amounts in thousands except per share data)
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 Management evaluates securities for other-than-temporary impairment (oTTI) at least on a quarterly basis, and more 
frequently when economic or market conditions warrant such an evaluation.  for securities in an unrealized loss position, 
management considers the extent and duration of the unrealized loss, and the financial condition and near-term prospects 
of the issuer.  Management also assesses whether it intends to sell, or it is more likely than not that it will be required to 
sell, a security in an unrealized loss position before recovery of its amortized cost basis.  If either of the criteria regarding 
intent or requirement to sell is met, the entire difference between amortized cost and fair value is recognized as 
impairment through earnings.  for debt securities that do not meet the aforementioned criteria, the amount of impairment 
is split into two components as follows: 1) oTTI related to credit loss, which must be recognized in the income statement 
and 2) other-than-temporary impairment related to other factors, which is recognized in other comprehensive income.  
The credit loss is defined as the difference between the present value of the cash flows expected to be collected and the 
amortized cost basis.  for equity securities, the entire amount of impairment is recognized through earnings.

 Loans Held for Sale 
Mortgage loans originated and intended for sale in the secondary market are carried at the lower of aggregate cost or fair 
value, as determined by outstanding commitments from investors.  net unrealized losses, if any, are recorded as a valuation 
allowance and charged to earnings.

  
 Mortgage loans held for sale are generally sold with servicing rights retained.  The carrying value of mortgage loans is 

reduced by the fair value allocated to the servicing right.  Gains and losses on sales of mortgage loans are based on the 
difference between the selling price and the carrying value of the related loan sold.

 
 Loans 

loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity or payoff are reported 
at the principal balance outstanding plus net deferred loan costs, net of the allowance for loan losses.  Interest income is 
accrued on the unpaid principal balance.  Direct loan origination costs and loan origination fees are deferred and 
recognized in interest income using the level yield method over the life of the loan without anticipating prepayments.

 Interest income on loans is discontinued at the time the loan is 90 days delinquent unless the loan is well-secured and in 
process of collection.  Consumer and credit card loans are typically charged-off no later than 120 days past due.  Past due 
status is based on the contractual terms of the loan.  In all cases, loans are placed on nonaccrual or charged-off at an earlier 
date if collection of principal or interest is considered doubtful.  nonaccrual loans and loans past due 90 days still on 
accrual include both smaller balance homogeneous loans that are collectively evaluated for impairment and individually 
classified impaired loans.  a loan is moved to nonaccrual status in accordance with the Company's policy, typically after 90 
days on non-payment.

 all interest accrued but not received for loans placed on nonaccrual is reversed against interest income.  Interest received 
on such loans is accounted for on the cash-basis or cost-recovery method, until qualifying for return to accrual.  loans are 
returned to accrual status when all the principal and interest amounts contractually due are brought current and future 
payments are reasonably assured.  

 Allowance for Loan Losses 
The allowance for loan losses is a valuation allowance for probable incurred credit losses.  loan losses are charged against 
the allowance when management believes the uncollectibility of a loan balance is confirmed.  subsequent recoveries, if any, 
are credited to the allowance.  Management estimates the allowance balance required using past loan loss experience, the 
nature and volume of the portfolio, information about specific borrower situations and estimated collateral values, 
economic conditions, and other factors.  allocations of the allowance may be made for specific loans, but the entire 
allowance is available for any loan that, in Management's judgment, should be charged-off.

notes to Consolidated finanCial statements
(Dollar and share amounts in thousands except per share data)
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 The allowance consists of specific and general components.  The specific component relates to loans that are individually 
classified as impaired.  a loan is impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that the Company 
will be unable to collect all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement.  loans for which the 
terms have been modified resulting in a concession and for which the borrower is experiencing financial difficulties, are 
considered troubled debt restructuring and classified as impaired.

 factors considered by management in determining impairment include payment status, collateral value, and the probability 
of collecting scheduled principal and interest payments when due. loans that experience insignificant payment delays and 
payment shortfalls generally are not classified as impaired.  Management determines the significance of payment delays 
and payment shortfalls on case-by-case basis, taking into consideration all of the circumstances surrounding the loan and 
the borrower, including the length of the delay, the reasons for the delay, the borrower’s prior payment record, and the 
amount of the shortfall in relation to the principal and interest owed.

 for commercial and commercial real estate loans, the Company evaluates those classified in our internal risk grading 
system as substandard, doubtful or loss with individual principal loan balances greater than $100 to determine if they are 
impaired.  If a loan is impaired, a portion of the allowance is allocated so that the loan is reported, net, at the present value 
of estimated future cash flows using the loan’s existing rate or at the fair value of collateral if repayment is expected solely 
from the collateral.  large groups of smaller balance homogeneous loans, such as consumer and residential real estate 
loans, are collectively evaluated for impairment, and accordingly, they are not separately identified for impairment 
disclosures.  

 Troubled debt restructuring are separately identified for impairment disclosures and are measured at the present value of 
the estimated future cash flows using the loan’s effective rate at inception.  If a troubled debt restructuring is considered to 
be a collateral dependent loan, the loan is reported, net, at the fair value of the collateral.  for troubled debt restructuring 
that subsequently default, the Company determines the amount of reserve in accordance with the accounting policy for the 
allowance for loan losses.

 
 The general component covers non-impaired loans and is based on historical loss experience adjusted for current factors.  

The historical loss experience is determined by portfolio segment and is based on the actual loss history experienced by 
the Company over the most recent three years.  This actual loss experience is supplemented with other economic factors 
based on the risks present for each portfolio segment.  These economic factors include consideration of the following:  
levels of and trends in delinquencies and impaired loans; levels of and trends in charge-offs and recoveries; trends in 
volume and terms of loans; effects of any changes in risk selection and underwriting standards; other changes in lending 
policies, procedures, and practices; experience, ability, and depth of lending management and other relevant staff; national 
and local economic trends and conditions; industry conditions; and effects of changes in credit concentrations.  The 
following portfolio segments have been identified:  Commercial, residential real estate, commercial real estate, 
construction, consumer and credit card.

 
 Commercial credit is extended primarily to small and middle market customers.  such credits typically comprise working 

capital loans, loans for physical asset expansion, asset acquisition loans and other business loans.  loans to closely held 
businesses will generally be guaranteed in full or for a meaningful amount by the business's major owners.  Commercial 
loans are made based primarily on the historical and projected cash flow of the borrower and secondarily on the 
underlying collateral provided by the borrower.  The cash flows of borrowers, however, may not behave as forecasted and 
collateral securing loans may fluctuate in value due to economic or individual performance factors.  Minimum standards 
and underwriting guidelines have been established for all commercial loan types.

 Residential real estate loans are secured by real property through the use of a mortgage note which evidences the existence 
of the loan and the encumbrance of the property.  These loans are repaid by the cash flow of the borrower.
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 Commercial real estate loans are subject to underwriting standards and processes similar to commercial loans.  These loans 
are viewed as cash flow loans and the repayment of these loans is largely dependent on the successful operation of the 
property.  loan performance may be adversely affected by factors impacting the general economy or conditions specific to 
the real estate market such as geographic location and/or property type.

 The Company defines construction loans as loans where the loan proceeds are controlled by the Company and used 
exclusively for the improvement of real estate in which the Company holds a mortgage.  Due to the inherent risk of this 
type of loan, they are subject to other industry specific policy guidelines outlined in the Company's Credit Risk Policy and 
are monitored closely.

 The Company originates direct and indirect consumer loans including residential real estate, home equity lines and loans 
and credit card loans.  each loan type has a separate pricing matrix which consists of several factors including debt to 
income, type of collateral and loan to collateral value, credit history and Company relationships with the borrower.

 Credit card loans are revolving lines of credit that grants credit to the borrower from which the user can borrow money for 
payment to a merchant or as a cash advance.  a credit card allows the consumer a continuing balance of debt subject to 
interest being charged and are repaid from the cash flow of the borrower.

 
 Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) Stock 

The bank is a member of the fHlb of Pittsburgh.  Members are required to own a certain amount of stock based on the 
level of borrowings and other factors, and may invest in additional amounts.  fHlb stock is carried at cost, classified as a 
restricted security and periodically evaluated for impairment based on ultimate recovery of par value.  both cash and stock 
dividends, if any, are reported as income.

 
 Foreclosed Assets 

assets acquired through or instead of loan foreclosure are initially recorded at fair value less costs to sell when acquired, 
establishing a new cost basis.  These assets are subsequently accounted for at lower of cost or fair value less estimated cost 
to sell.  If fair value declines subsequent to foreclosure, a valuation allowance is recorded through expense.  operating costs 
after acquisition are expensed.

 Premises and Equipment 
land is carried at cost.  Premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.  buildings and related 
components are depreciated using the straight-line method with useful lives ranging from 5 to 40 years.  furniture, fixtures, 
and equipment are depreciated using the straight-line method with useful lives ranging from 5 to 7 years.

 Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets 
Goodwill resulting from business combinations prior to January 1, 2009 represents the excess of the purchase price over 
the fair value of the net assets of the business acquired.  Goodwill and intangible assets acquired in a purchase business 
combination and determined to have an indefinite useful life are not amortized, but tested for impairment at least annually.  
The Company has selected october 31 as the date to perform the annual impairment test.  Intangible assets with definite 
useful lives are amortized over their estimated useful lives to their estimated residual values.  Goodwill is the only 
intangible asset with an indefinite life on the Company’s balance sheet.

 
 other intangible assets consist of core deposit intangible assets arising from branch acquisitions.  They are initially 

measured at fair value and then are amortized on an accelerated method over their estimated useful life, which is 
approximately 10 years.

notes to Consolidated finanCial statements
(Dollar and share amounts in thousands except per share data)
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 Bank Owned Life Insurance 
The Company has purchased life insurance policies on certain key employees.  bank owned life insurance is recorded at 
the amount that can be realized under the insurance contracts at the balance sheet date, which is the cash surrender value 
adjusted for other changes or other amounts due that are probable at settlement.

 Servicing Rights 
When mortgage loans are sold with servicing retained, servicing rights are initially recorded at fair value with the income 
statement effect recorded in gains on sales of loans.  fair value is based on market prices for comparable mortgage servicing 
contracts, when available, or alternatively, is based on a valuation model that calculates the present value of estimated 
future net servicing income.  all classes of servicing assets are subsequently measured using the amortization method 
which requires servicing rights to be amortized into noninterest income in proportion to, and over the period of, estimated 
future net servicing income of the underlying loans.  

 servicing rights are evaluated for impairment based upon the fair value of the rights compared to carrying amount.  
Impairment is determined by stratifying rights into groupings based on predominant risk characteristics, such as interest 
rate, loan type and investor type.  Impairment is recognized through a valuation allowance for an individual grouping, to 
the extent that fair value is less than the carrying amount.  If the Company later determines that all of a portion of the 
impairment no longer exists for a particular grouping, a reduction of the allowance may be recorded as an increase to 
income.  Changes in valuation allowances are reported with other noninterest income on the income statement.  The fair 
values of the servicing rights are subject to significant fluctuations as a result of changes in estimated and actual 
prepayment speeds and default rates and losses. 

 servicing fee income, which is recorded on the income statement as other noninterest income is recorded for fees earned 
for servicing loans.  The fees are based on a contractual percentage of the outstanding principal; or a fixed amount per loan 
and are recorded as income when earned.  The amortization of mortgage servicing rights is netted against loan servicing 
fee income.

 
 Long-term Assets 

Premises and equipment, core deposit intangible assets and other intangible assets are reviewed for impairment when 
events indicate their carrying amount may not be recoverable from future undiscounted cash flows.  If impaired, the assets 
are recorded at fair value.

 Loan Commitments and Related Financial Instruments 
financial instruments include off-balance sheet credit instruments, such as commitments to make loans and commercial 
letters of credit, issued to meet customer financing needs.  The face amount for these items represents the exposure to loss, 
before considering customer collateral or ability to repay.  such financial instruments are recorded when they are funded.  
Instruments, such as stand by letters of credit, that are considered financial guarantees are recorded at fair value at 
inception.

notes to Consolidated finanCial statements
(Dollar and share amounts in thousands except per share data)
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 Derivatives 
at the inception of a derivative contract, the Company designates the derivative as one of three types based on the 
Company’s intentions and belief as to likely effectiveness as a hedge.  These three types are: 1) a hedge of fair value of a 
recognized asset or liability or of an unrecognized firm commitment (fair value hedge), 2) a hedge of a forecasted 
transaction or the variability of cash flows to be received or paid related to a recognized asset or liability (cash flow hedge) 
or 3) an instrument with no hedging designation (stand-alone derivative).  for a fair value hedge, the gain or loss on the 
derivative, as well as the offsetting loss or gain on the hedged item, are recognized in current earnings as fair values change.  
for a cash flow hedge, the gain or loss on the derivative is reported in other comprehensive income and is reclassified into 
earnings in the same periods during which the hedged transaction affects earnings.  for both types of hedges, changes in 
the fair value of derivatives that are not highly effective in hedging the changes in fair value or expected cash flows of the 
hedged item are recognized immediately in current earnings.  Changes in the fair value of derivatives that do not qualify for 
hedge accounting are reported currently in earnings, as noninterest income.

 net cash settlements on derivatives that qualify for hedge accounting are recorded in interest income or interest expense,  
based on the item being hedged.  net cash settlements on derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are reported  
in noninterest income.  Cash flows on hedges are classified in the cash flow statement the same as the cash flows of the 
item being hedged.

 The Company formally documents the relationship between the derivatives and hedged items, as well as the risk 
management objective and the strategy for undertaking the swap at the inception of the hedging relationship.  The 
documentation includes linking fair value or cash flow hedges to specific assets and liabilities on the balance sheet or to 
specific firm commitments or forecasted transactions.  The Company also formally assesses, both at the hedge’s inception 
and on an ongoing basis, whether the derivative instruments that are used are highly effective in offsetting changes in fair 
values or cash flows of the hedged items.  The Company discontinues hedge accounting when it determines that the 
derivative is no longer effective in offsetting fair value or cash flows of the hedged item, the derivative is settled or 
terminates, a hedged forecasted transaction is no longer probable, a hedged firm commitment is no longer firm, or 
treatment of the derivative as a hedge is no longer appropriate or intended.

 
 When hedge accounting is discontinued, subsequent changes in fair value of the derivative are recorded as noninterest 

income.  When a fair value hedge is discontinued, the hedged asset or liability is no longer adjusted for changes in fair 
value and the existing basis is amortized or accreted over the remaining life of the asset or liability.  When a cash flow 
hedge is discontinued but the hedged cash flows or forecasted transactions are still expected to occur, gains or losses that 
were accumulated in other comprehensive income are amortized into earnings over the same periods which the hedged 
transactions will affect earnings. 

  
 Income Taxes 

Income tax expense is the total of the current year income tax due or refundable and the change in deferred tax assets and 
liabilities.  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are the expected future tax amounts for the temporary differences between 
carrying amounts and tax bases of assets and liabilities, computed using enacted tax rates.  a valuation allowance, if 
needed, reduces deferred tax assets to the amount expected to be realized.

 
 a tax position is recognized as a benefit only if it is "more likely than not" that the tax position would be sustained in a tax 

examination, with a tax examination being presumed to occur. The amount recognized is the largest amount of tax benefit 
that is greater than 50% likely of being realized on examination. for tax positions not meeting the "more likely than not" 
test, no tax benefit is recorded.  The Company recognizes interest and/or penalties to income tax matters in income tax 
expense. 

notes to Consolidated finanCial statements
(Dollar and share amounts in thousands except per share data)
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 Transfer of Financial Assets 
Transfer of financial assets are accounted for as sales when control over the assets has been relinquished.  Control over 
transferred assets is deemed to be surrendered when the assets have been isolated from the Company, the transferee 
obtains the right (free of conditions that constrain it from taking advantage of that right) to pledge or exchange the 
transferred assets, and the Company does not maintain effective control over the transferred assets through an agreement 
to purchase them before their maturity.

 Retirement Plans 
employee 401(k) and profit sharing plan expense is the amount of matching contributions and discretionary additional 
contributions. Postretirement benefits and supplemental executive retirement plan expense are the net, in each case, of 
service and interest cost and amortization of gains and losses not immediately recognized in expense.  supplemental 
executive retirement plan expense allocates the benefits over the years of service.

 Earnings Per Common Share 
basic earnings per common share is net income available to common shareholders divided by the weighted average 
number of common shares outstanding during the period.  The Company’s capital structure contains no potentially 
diluted securities.

 
 Comprehensive Income 

Comprehensive income (loss) consists of net income and other comprehensive income (loss).  other comprehensive 
income (loss) includes unrealized gains and losses on securities available for sale, changes in the funded status of the 
postretirement benefit plans, and unrealized gains or losses on cash flow hedges, which are also recognized as separate 
components of equity.

 Restriction on Cash
 Cash on hand or on deposit with the federal Reserve bank was required to meet regulatory reserve and clearing 

requirements.  

  Loss Contingencies
 loss contingencies, including claims and legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business, are recorded as liabilities 

when the likelihood of loss is probable and an amount or range of loss can be reasonably estimated.  Management does not 
believe there now are any other such matters that will have a material effect on the financial statements.

  
 Dividend Restrictions 

banking regulations require maintaining certain capital levels and may limit the dividends paid by the bank to the holding 
company or by the holding company to shareholders. 

 Fair Value of Financial Instruments 
fair values of financial instruments are estimated using relevant market information and other assumptions, as more fully 
disclosed in a separate note.  fair value estimates involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgment regarding 
interest rates, credit risk, prepayments, and other factors, especially in the absence of broad markets for particular items.  
Changes in assumptions or in market conditions could significantly affect the estimates.

  

 

notes to Consolidated finanCial statements
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notes to Consolidated finanCial statements
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2. seCuRities:
  The amortized cost and fair value of available for sale securities and the related gross unrealized gains and losses recognized in 

accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) were as follows:

  gross gross 
 Amortized unrealized unrealized Fair 
2015 Cost gains Losses value
state & municipal $19,552 $714 $1 $20,265
Mortgage-backed - residential 50,804 311 302 50,813
total debt securities 70,356 1,025 303 71,078
Mutual funds 2,098 13 - 2,111
total securities $72,454 $1,038 $303 $73,189

  Gross Gross 
 amortized Unrealized Unrealized fair 
2014 Cost Gains losses Value
state & municipal $22,421 $847 $8 $23,260
Mortgage-backed - residential 70,161 556 300 70,417
Total debt securities 92,582 1,403 308 93,677
Mutual funds 2,054 12 - 2,066
Total securities $94,636 $1,415 $308 $95,743

 
 There were no securities held to maturity on December 31, 2015 and 2014. 

 sales of available for sale securities were as follows:

  2015 2014 2013
Proceeds   $4,677 $4,739 $11,170
Gross gains  82 120 393
Gross losses  (5) (11) (14)

  The tax provision related to these net realized gains and losses was $27, $37, and $129, respectively.
 
 securities pledged at year-end 2015 and 2014 had a carrying amount of $17,146 and $21,450 and were pledged to secure 

public deposits, trust department deposits and borrowings at the federal Reserve bank.
 
 at year-end 2015 and 2014 there were no holdings of securities of any one issuer in an amount greater than 10% of 

shareholders equity other than mortgage-backed securities issued by the Government national Mortgage association 
(GnMa), which are backed by the full faith and credit of the U.s. Government, and mortgage-backed securities issued by the 
federal Home loan Mortgage Corporation (fHlMC) or the federal national Mortgage association (fnMa), entities that 
the U.s. Government has affirmed its commitment to support.
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 The amortized cost and fair value of debt securities and carrying amount, if different, at year-end 2015 by contractual  
 maturity were as follows.  expected maturities may differ from contractual maturities if borrowers have the right to call or  
 prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.  securities not due at a single maturity date, consisting of  
 mortgage-backed securities, are shown separately.

                                                                                                                       Available for sale
 Amortized Fair 
2015 Cost value
Due in one year or less $ - $ -
Due from one year to five years 1,765 1,837
Due from five years to ten years 12,389 12,889
Due after ten years 5,398 5,539
Mortgage-backed - residential 50,804 50,813
total debt securities $70,356 $71,078

 The following summarizes the investment securities with unrealized losses at December 31, 2015 and 2014 aggregated by 
major security type and length of time in a continuous loss position.

 Less than 12 months
 12 months or more total

  Fair unrealized Fair unrealized Fair unrealized
 2015 value Losses value Losses value Losses
 state & municipal $495 $1 $ - $ - $495 $1
 Mortgage-backed - residential 14,621 78 10,113 224 24,734 302
 total temporarily impaired $15,116 $79 $10,113 $224 $25,229 $303

 less Than 12 Months
 12 Months or More Total

  fair Unrealized fair Unrealized fair Unrealized
 2014 Value losses Value losses Value losses
 state & municipal $489 $8 $ - $ - $489 $8
 Mortgage-backed - residential 22,572 50 12,958 250 35,530 300
 Total temporarily impaired $23,061 $58 $ 12,958 $ 250 $36,019 $308
  
 as of December 31, 2015, the Company’s security portfolio consisted of 70 securities, 17 of which were in an unrealized loss 

position.  a portion of the unrealized losses is related to the Company’s state and municipal securities.  all of these securities 
are general obligations of the state or municipality.  because the decline in fair value of the securities is attributable to changes 
in interest rates, and not credit quality, and because the Company does not have the intent to sell these securities and it is 
likely that it will not be required to sell the securities before their anticipated recovery, the Company does not consider these 
securities to be other-than-temporarily impaired at December 31, 2015.  

 The decline in the fair value of state and municipal securities is related to the broad market reaction to the municipal market 
in general.  These securities continue to be highly rated.  Mortgage-backed securities with unrealized losses are guaranteed by 
GnMa.  The decline in fair value is the result of changes in market interest rates.  The decline in fair value of mutual funds is 
a result of the decline in interest rates.  The Company expects the fair value to recover.

 

notes to Consolidated finanCial statements
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3. loans:
 loans at year-end were as follows:

   2015 2014
Commercial $69,336 $58,848
Real estate
 Residential 103,715   98,299
 Commercial 154,096 122,669
 Construction 4,330 5,731
Consumer 11,552 10,253
Credit card 2,896 2,674
total loans 345,925 298,474
allowance for loan losses (3,219) (3,292)
total loans, net $342,706 $295,182

net deferred loan costs were $1,039 and $936 at year-end 2015 and 2014.

activity in the allowance for loan losses is as follows.  activity for 2015,  2014 and 2013 was presented by portfolio segment.

    Real estate Real estate  Real estate
2015  Commercial Residential Commercial Construction Consumer    Credit card    unallocated  total 
beginning balance $821 $540 $1,609 $26 $239 $57   $ - $3,292 
Provision for loan losses  (4) 106 21 (5) 234  38  85 475
loans charged-off (48) (22) (275) - (315)  (38)  - (698)
Recoveries 31 2 7 - 104  6   - 150 
ending balance $800 $626 $1,362 $21 $262  $63   $ 85 $3,219 

    Real estate Real estate  Real estate
2014  Commercial Residential Commercial Construction Consumer    Credit card    Unallocated  Total 
beginning balance $976 $567 $1,248 $29 $243  $45   $ - $3,108 
Provision for loan losses  (800) 11 308 (3) 178  56  - (250)
loans charged-off (50) (70) - - (273)  (50)  - (443)
Recoveries 695 32 53 - 91  6  - 877 
ending balance $821 $540 $1,609 $26 $239  $57  $ - $3,292 

    Real estate Real estate Real estate
2013  Commercial Residential Commercial Construction Consumer    Credit card    Unallocated  Total 
beginning balance $522 $448 $1,951 $39 $172  $55   $ - $3,187 
Provision for loan losses  588 185 (682) (10) 260  9  - 350
loans charged-off (187) (89) (35) - (258)  (29)  - (598)
Recoveries 53 23 14 - 69  10  - 169 
ending balance $976 $567 $1,248 $29 $243 $45  $ - $3,108 

  

notes to Consolidated finanCial statements
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 The following presents the balance in the allowance for loan losses and the recorded investment in loans by portfolio segment  
 and based on impairment methods as of December 31:

    Real estate Real estate Real estate
 2015 Commercial Residential Commercial Construction Consumer Credit card unallocated total
 ending allowance balance
          attributable to loans:
 Individually evaluated
          for impairment $2 $46 $55 $ -  $ -  $ -  $ - $103 
 Collectively evaluated 
          for impairment  798  580  1,307   21  262   63  85 $3,116
 total ending allowance balance $800 $626 $1,362 $21  $262  $63  $85  $3,219
          
 loans:         
 loans individually evaluated 
          for impairment $1,042 $301  $3,674 $ -  $15  $ -  $ -  $5,032
 loans collectively evaluated 
          for impairment 68,294 103,414 150,422 4,330  11,537 2,896 - $340,893
 total ending loan balances $69,336 $103,715 $154,096 $4,330  $11,552 $2,896 $ - $345,925

The recorded investment includes the unpaid balance and unamortized loan origination fees and costs, but excludes accrued 
interest receivable of $614 which is not considered to be material. 

 Real estate Real estate Real estate
   2014 Commercial Residential Commercial Construction Consumer Credit card Unallocated Total
   ending allowance balance 
          attributable to loans:
   Individually evaluated 
          for impairment $ - $ - $290 $ - $ -  $ -  $ - $290
   Collectively evaluated 
          for impairment  821   540   1,319   26  239  57  - $3,002
   Total ending allowance balance $821  $540  $1,609 $26  $239  $57  $ -  $3,292
          
   loans:         
   loans individually evaluated 
          for impairment $986 $118  $3,827 $ -  $3  $ -  $ -  $4,934
   loans collectively evaluated 
          for impairment 57,862 98,181 118,842 5,731  10,250 2,674 - $293,540
  Total ending loan balances $58,848 $98,299 $122,669 $5,731  $10,253 $2,674 $ - $298,474

The recorded investment includes the unpaid balance and unamortized loan origination fees and costs, but excludes accrued  
interest receivable of $651 which is not considered to be material. 
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The following table presents loans individually evaluated for impairment by class of loans as of December 31:
            

  unpaid  Allowance for Average interest Cash basi
  principal Recorded Loan Losses Recorded income interest
2015  balance investment Allocated investment Recognized Recognized
With no related allowance recorded:        
Commercial  $1,021 $956 $ -  $983 $47 $ -
Real estate
 Residential   225   226  -   116   12  - 
 Commercial
 owner occupied  1,336 1,336 -  1,372 54 - 
 non-owner occupied  756 757 - 95 - -
Consumer  15  15  -  11  2  - 

With an allowance recorded:
Commercial  86 86  2 103  6  - 
Real estate
 Residential  75 75 46 1 - -
 Commercial
 owner occupied - - - 816 - -
 non-owner occupied  1,583 1,581  55 1,598  60  - 
Loans individually evaluated for impairment  $5,097 $5,032 $103 $5,095 $181 $ - 

   Unpaid  allowance for average Interest Cash basis
   Principal Recorded loan losses Recorded Income Interest
2014  balance Investment allocated Investment Recognized Recognized
With no related allowance recorded:
Commercial  $1,065 $986 $ -  $1,123  $60 $ - 
Real estate      
 Residential   117   118  -   104   8  - 
 Commercial owner occupied  1,413 1,413 -  1,593 64 - 
Consumer  3  3  -  11  2  - 

With an allowance recorded:
Commercial  - -  -  12  17  - 
Real estate      
 Commercial
 owner occupied  808 803  205  2  -  - 
 non-owner occupied  1,613 1,611 85 1,630 71 -
loans individually evaluated for impairment  $5,019 $4,934 $290  $4,475 $222 $ - 

   Unpaid  allowance for average Interest Cash basis
   Principal Recorded loan losses Recorded Income Interest
2013  balance Investment allocated Investment Recognized Recognized
With no related allowance recorded:        
Commercial  $1,242 $1,150  $ -  $1,369 $105 $- 
Real estate
 Residential   27   27  -   31   1  - 
 Commercial owner occupied  2,306 2,304 -  2,250 159 - 
Consumer  23  23  -  28  3  - 

With an allowance recorded:
Commercial  465 465  465 32  -  - 
Real estate
 Commercial
 owner occupied  1,646 1,644  118  1,660  68  - 
loans individually evaluated for impairment  $5,709 $5,613 $583  $5,370 $336 $-  

notes to Consolidated finanCial statements
(Dollar and share amounts in thousands except per share data)
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 The following presents the aging of the recorded investment in past due loans as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 by class of   
 loans:   
    still Accruing
  30 - 59 60 - 89 greater than total past total   
  days days 89 days due still  Loans not total total
            2015  past due past due past due Accruing past due nonaccrual Loans
 Commercial $96 $ - $ - $96  $69,240 $ - $69,336 
 Real estate            
  Residential  730 158 -  888 102,358 469 103,715 
  Commercial           
   owner occupied  57  -  -  57 79,429 - 79,486 
   non-owner occupied - - -  - 74,610 - 74,610
  Construction -  -  -  - 4,330 - 4,330
 Consumer 105   36  -   141 11,324 87  11,552  
 Credit card 20   22  -   42  2,853  1  2,896 
 total loans $1,008 $216  $ -  $1,224 $344,144 $557 $345,925 
     

      still accruing
     30 - 59 60 - 89 Greater than Total Past Total  
     Days Days 89 Days Due still loans not Total Total

2014  Past Due Past Due Past Due accruing Past Due nonaccrual loans
Commercial   $235 $ - $ - $235 $58,565 $48 $58,848 
Real estate              
  Residential   860 150 -  1,010 96,937 352 98,299 
  Commercial             
   owner occupied    241  183  -  424 59,816 849 61,089        
   non-owner occupied   - - - - 61,580 - 61,580
  Construction   -  -  -  - 5,731 - 5,731
Consumer   117   34  -   151 10,077 25  10,253  
Credit card   11   8  -   19  2,654  1  2,674 
Total loans   $1,464 $375  $ -  $1,839 $295,360 $1,275 $298,474 
  
troubled debt Restructuring:
The Company has allocated $58 and $85 of specific reserves to customers whose  loan terms have been modified in troubled  
debt restructuring as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 and has  not committed to lend additional amounts. 

During the years-ending December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, the terms of certain loans were modified as troubled debt 
restructuring.  The  modification of the terms of such loans included one or a combination of the following:  a reduction of 
the stated interest rate of the loan, an extension of the maturity date at a stated rate of interest lower than the current market 
rate for new debt with similar  risk; or a permanent reduction of the recorded investment in the loan.

Modifications involving a reduction of the stated interest rate of the loan were for periods ranging from seventeen to sixty 
months.   Modifications involving an extension of the maturity date were for a period of 12 months.

notes to Consolidated finanCial statements
(Dollar and share amounts in thousands except per share data)
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notes to Consolidated finanCial statements
(Dollar and share amounts in thousands except per share data)

The following table presents the loans by class modified as troubled debt restructuring that occurred during the years-ending  
December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013:
    2015                     2014                                                     2013
       pre-modification                          Pre-Modification               Pre-Modification
                outstanding               outstanding       outstanding   
    number   Recorded       number     Recorded          number  Recorded

        troubled debt restructuring: of Loans  investment  of loans  Investment of loans Investment   
    Commercial 1  $242  4    $86    1  $2
     Real estate             
       Residential -  -  1  117                  - -   
       Commercial                  
          non-owner occupied 1  756  -  -                2  28   
    total troubled debt 
           restructuring 2  $998  5  $203 3 $30

  
    The outstanding recorded investments in troubled debt restructuring described above remained the same after   
    modification for the year ending December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013.  The troubled debt restructuring described above did   
    not increase the allowance for loan losses and did not result in charge-offs during the year-ending December 31, 2015, 2014   
    and 2013.  

The following table presents loans by class modified as troubled debt restructuring for which there was a payment default 
within twelve months following the modification during the year-ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013:
 
 2015 2014 2013
  number       Recorded           number         Recorded  number Recorded

    troubled debt restructuring: of Loans   investment of loans         Investment  of loans   Investment 

    Commercial - $ - - $ - - $- 
     Real estate        
          Residential - - - - 2 26 
          Commercial             
             owner occupied - -                      -                         -  - -
    Consumer - - - - - -
    total troubled debt restructuring - $ - -  $ - 2 $26

    a loan is considered to be in payment default once it is 90 days contractually past due under the modified terms.

    The troubled debt restructuring that subsequently defaulted described above resulted in no additional allowance for loan   
    losses and  resulted in no charge-offs during the year-ending December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013.   

    In order to determine whether a borrower is experiencing financial difficulty, an evaluation is performed of the probability   
    that the  borrower will be in payment default on any of its debt in the foreseeable future without the modification.  This   
    evaluation is performed under the Company's internal underwriting policy.
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Credit quality indicators:
The Company categorizes loans into risk categories based on relevant information about the ability of borrowers to service 
their  debt such as:  current financial information, historical payment experience, credit documentation, public information, 
and  current economic trends, among other factors.  The Company analyzes loans individually by classifying the loans as to 
credit risk.  This analysis includes loan relationships with outstanding balances greater than $500 thousand.  other loan 
relationships are  analyzed based on historic payment experience and collateral.  loans over 90 days past due are classified as 
substandard and loans  over 120 days past due are classified as loss, unless the collateral is sufficient to cover the loan balance.

loans listed as not rated are included in groups of homogeneous loans.  as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and based on the 
most recent  analysis performed, the risk category of loans by class of loans is as follows:
 
 special mention.  loans classified as special mention have a potential weakness that deserves Management's close    
 attention.  If  left uncorrected, these potential weaknesses may result in deterioration of the repayment prospects for the   
 loan or of the  institution’s credit position at some future date.

        substandard.  loans classified as substandard are inadequately protected by the current net worth and paying capacity of  
        the obligor or collateral pledged, if any.  loans so classified have a well-defined weakness or weaknesses that jeopardize  
        the liquidation of the debt.  They are characterized by the distinct possibility that the institution will sustain some loss if   
        the deficiencies are not corrected.

 doubtful.  loans classified as doubtful have all the weaknesses inherent in those classified as substandard, with the added  
 characteristic that the weaknesses make collection or liquidation in full, on the basis of currently existing facts, conditions,  
 and  values, highly questionable and improbable.

 Loss.  loans classified as loss have all the weaknesses inherent in those classified as doubtful, with the added     
 characteristic that  the loan is unsecured and over 120 day past due.

loans not meeting the criteria above that are analyzed individually as part of the above described process are considered to 
be pass rated loans.  loans listed as not rated are either less than $500 thousand or are included in groups of homogeneous 
loans.  as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and based on the most recent analysis performed, the risk category of loans by 
class of loans is as follows:

    not  special
     2015  Rated pass mention substandard doubtful Loss  
 Commercial $16,784 $49,689 $610 $2,253 $ - $ -  

 Real estate         
  Residential 84,109 18,987 69 550 - -  
  Commercial       
    owner occupied 16,418 62,138 302 628 - -  
   non-owner occupied 2,782 69,025 1,460 1,343 - -  
  Construction 1,460 2,870 - -  -  -  
 Consumer 11,457 8 - 85 2 - 
 Credit card 2,872 17 - 7 - -  
 total loans $135,882 $202,734 $2,441 $4,866 $2 $ -  

notes to Consolidated finanCial statements
(Dollar and share amounts in thousands except per share data)
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notes to Consolidated finanCial statements
(Dollar and share amounts in thousands except per share data)

    not  special
 2014  Rated Pass Mention substandard Doubtful loss    
 Commercial $11,899 $42,326 $1,673 $2,950 $ - $ -  
 Real estate         
  Residential 77,118 20,636 106 439 - -   
    Commercial    
   owner occupied 9,373 47,778 1,401 2,537 - -   
       non-owner occupied 988 57,185 - 3,407 - -   
  Construction 1,631 4,100 - -  -  -  
 Consumer 10,216 12 - 21 4 -   
 Credit card 2,653 8 - 13 - -   
 Total loans $113,878  $172,045 $3,180 $9,367 $4 $ -  

 
 The Company does not have loans that were considered to be subprime at origination.

 
 The Company considers the performance of the loan portfolio and its impact on the allowance for loan losses.  for residential  
 and  consumer loan classes, the Company also evaluates credit quality based on the aging status of the loan, which was  
 previously presented and by payment activity.
  

    The following table presents the recorded investment in residential and  consumer loans based on payment activity:
 
 2015  Credit Card Consumer              Residential 
 Performing $2,895 $11,465                   $103,246 

nonperforming  1 87                            469
 total residential and consumer loans $2,896 $11,552                   $103,715
  
 2014  Credit Card Consumer              Residential 
 Performing  $2,673 $10,228                    $97,947 
 nonperforming 1 25 352
 Total residential and consumer loans $2,674 $10,253 $98,299

4. Real estate owned
 Real estate owned activity was as follows:

      
  2015 2014 2013
beginning balance  $ - $77 $503 
loans transferred to real estate owned 558 109 95
sales of real estate owned  - (186) (521)
ending balance $558 $- $77

 
 activity in the valuation allowance was as follows:

      
  2015 2014 2013
beginning of year $ - $- $ 200
additions charged to expense - - 13
Reductions from sales of real estate owned - - (213)
ending balance $ - $ - $ -
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expenses related to foreclosed assets include: 
  2015 2014 2013
net loss (gain) on sales $ - $11 $3
Provision for unrealized losses - - 15
operating expenses, net of rental income 77 19 45
total other real estate expense $77 $30 $63

5. faiR Value: 
fair value is the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (exit price) in the principal or   
most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement 
date.  There are three levels or inputs that may be used to measure fair value:

   level 1:  Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the entity has the ability to   
 access as of the measurement date.

   
   level 2:  significant other observable inputs other than level 1 prices such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities;  

  quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable   
 market data.

   
   level 3:  significant unobservable inputs that reflect a reporting entity’s own assumptions about the assumptions that   

 market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability.

 The Company used the following methods and significant assumptions to estimate fair value:
 
Investment securities:  The fair values for investment securities are determined by quoted market prices, if available (level 1).  
for securities where quoted prices are not available, fair values are calculated based on market prices of similar securities    
(level 2) using matrix pricing.  for securities where quoted prices or market prices of similar securities are not available, fair 
values are calculated using discounted cash flows or other market indicators (level 3).  

Derivatives:  The fair value of derivatives are based on valuation models using observable market data as of the measurement 
date (level 2).  Market prices are not always available.  Therefore, the fair values of derivatives are determined using quantitative 
models that utilize multiple market inputs.  The inputs will vary based on the type of derivative, but could include interest rates, 
prices and indices to generate continuous yield or pricing curves and volatility factors to value the position.  The majority of the 
inputs can be validated through external sources, including brokers.

Impaired loans:  The fair value of impaired loans with specific allocations of the allowance for loan losses is generally based on 
recent real estate appraisals or other valuations of the underlying collateral.  Real estate appraisals may use a single valuation 
approach or a combination of approaches including use of comparable sales and the capitalization of income.  adjustments are 
routinely made in the appraisal process by the appraisers to adjust for differences between the comparable sales and income 
data available.  non-real estate collateral may be valued using an appraisal, net book value per the borrower’s financial 
statements, or aging reports, adjusted or discounted based on management’s historical knowledge, changes in market 
conditions from the time of the valuation, and management’s expertise and knowledge of the client and client’s business, 
resulting in a level 3 fair value classification.  Impaired loans are evaluated on a monthly basis for additional impairment and 
adjusted accordingly. 

notes to Consolidated finanCial statements
(Dollar and share amounts in thousands except per share data)
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Real estate owned:  assets acquired through or instead of loan foreclosure are initially recorded at fair value less costs to sell 
when acquired, establishing a new cost basis.  These assets are subsequently accounted for at lower of cost or fair value less 
estimated costs to sell. fair value is commonly based on recent real estate appraisals which are updated no less frequently than 
annually. These appraisals may utilize a single valuation approach or a combination of approaches including comparable sales 
and the income approach. adjustments are routinely made in the appraisal process by the independent appraisers to adjust for 
differences between the comparable sales and income data available.  such adjustments are usually significant and typically 
result in a level 3 classification of the inputs for determining fair value.  Real estate owned properties are evaluated on a 
quarterly basis for additional impairment and adjusted accordingly.  

appraisals for both collateral-dependent impaired loans and real estate owned are performed by certified general appraisers 
(for commercial properties) or certified residential appraisers (for residential properties) whose qualifications and licenses 
have been reviewed and verified by the Company.  once received, a member of the loan Review Department reviews the 
assumptions and approaches utilized in the appraisal as well as the overall resulting fair value in comparison with independent 
data sources such as recent market data or industry-wide statistics.  on an annual basis, the Company compares the actual 
selling price of collateral that has been sold to the most recent appraised value to determine what additional adjustment 
should be made to the appraisal value to arrive at fair value.  The most recent analysis performed indicated that a discount of 
10% should be applied to properties with appraisals performed within 12 months.

loans held for sale: loans held for sale are carried at the lower of cost or fair value.  The fair value is determined using quoted 
prices obtained from third party investors (level 2). 

 assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis are summarized below:

    quoted prices significant 
    in Active other significant
    markets for observable unobservable
    identical Assets inputs inputs

assets: 2015  (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) 
securities available for sale             
  state & municipal $20,265  $ -        $20,265                    $ -
  Mortgage-backed -residential 50,813  -          50,813  -
  Mutual funds 2,111  2,111 -                                     -

liabilities:
 Interest rate swap 64  -                   64                      -

assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis are summarized below:

    Quoted Prices significant
    in active other significant
    Markets for observable Unobservable
    Identical assets Inputs Inputs
  assets:  2014  (level 1) (level 2) (level 3)

securities available for sale           
  state & municipal $23,260  $ - $23,260               $ -
  Mortgage-backed-residential   70,417  - 70,417               -
  Mutual funds 2,066  2,066 -               -

 liabilities:
 Interest rate swap  152  - 152                              -

notes to Consolidated finanCial statements
(Dollar and share amounts in thousands except per share data)
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assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis are summarized below:

    quoted prices significant 
    in Active other significant
    markets for observable unobservable
    identical Assets inputs inputs

assets: 2015  (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) 
 Impaired loans 

      Residential real estate                                          $143                                          $ -                                     $ -                            $143
   other real estate, net
     Residential 8 - - 8
     Commerical owner occupied  550 - - 550 
    total impaired loans and other real estate $701 $ - $ - $701

    quoted prices significant 
    in Active other significant
    markets for observable unobservable
    identical Assets inputs inputs

assets: 2014  (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) 
 Impaired loans 

      Real estate     
            Commercial owner occupied                       $603                                       $ -                                   $ -                         $603 
    Total impaired loans and other real estate             $603                                       $ -                                   $ -                          $603

at December 31, 2015, impaired loans measured at fair value had a recorded investment of $189, with a valuation allowance 
of $46, resulting in a increase in the provision of $46 for the year-ended December 31, 2015.  at December 31, 2014, impaired 
loans measured at fair value had a recorded investment of $808, with a valuation allowance of $205, resulting in a increase in 
the provision of $205 for the year-ended December 31, 2014.   

other real estate owned with a fair value of $558 was held ad December 31, 2015 and there was no other real estate owned at 
December 31, 2014.  

The following table presents quantitative information about level 3 fair value measurements for financial instruments 
measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis at December 31, 2015.

 Fair valuation   Weighted
 value technique unobservable inputs Range Average
Impaired loans:
     Residential real estate $143 sales comparison Comparable sales adjustment 6% to 20% 14%   
other real estate, net
     Residential real estate 8 sales comparison Comparable sales adjustment 11% to 105% 67%
     Commercial real estate
         owner occupied 550 Income comparison Capitalization rate 9% 9%

The following table presents quantitative information about level 3 fair value measurements for financial instruments 
measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis at December 31, 2014.

 Fair valuation   Weighted
 value technique unobservable inputs Range Average
Impaired loans:
     Commercial real estate 
          owner occupied $603 sales comparison Comparable sales adjustment -15% to 32% 24%   

notes to Consolidated finanCial statements
(Dollar and share amounts in thousands except per share data)
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Carrying amount and estimated fair values of financial instruments were as follows at year-end:

                            Fair value measurement
 Carrying                              at december 31, 2015 using
Financial assets Amount Level 1 Level 2  Level 3 total
       Cash and cash equivalents $2,532 $2,532 $ - $ - $2,532
       Interest-bearing deposits 3,363 3,363 - - 3,363
       securities available for sale 73,189 2,111 71,078 - 73,189
       loans held for sale - - - - -
       loans, net 342,706 - 328,033 143 328,176
       federal Home loan bank stock 1,724 nA nA nA nA
       accrued interest receivable 901 287 614 - 901

Financial liabilities
       Deposits $364,140 $ - $364,012 $ - $364,012
       federal Home loan bank advances 28,700  - 28,713 - 28,713
       subordinated debentures 9,000 - 8,146  - 8,146
       accrued interest payable 196 - 196 - 196
       Interest rate swap 64 - 64 - 64

   fair Value Measurement
 Carrying  at December 31, 2014 using
financial assets amount level 1 level 2 level 3 Total
       Cash and cash equivalents $2,847 $2,847 $ - $ - $2,847
       Interest-bearing deposits 4,408  4,408 - - 4,408
       securities available for sale 95,743 2,066 93,677 - 95,743
       loans held for sale 114 - 116 - 116
       loans, net 295,182 - 283,493 603 284,096
       federal Home loan bank stock  616 na na na na
       accrued interest receivable 1,009 358 651 - 1,009

financial liabilities
       Deposits $363,094 $ - $363,159 $ - $363,159
       federal Home loan bank advances 8,800 - 8,851 - 8,851
       subordinated debentures 9,000 - 8,147 - 8,147
       accrued interest payable 181 - 181 - 181
       Interest rate swap 152 - 152 - 152

The methods and assumptions, not previously presented, used to estimate fair values are described as follows: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
The carrying amounts of cash and short-term instruments approximate fair values.

interest-bearing deposits 
The carrying amounts of interest-bearing deposits and short-term instruments approximate fair values.

FHLb stock 
It is not practical to determine the fair value of fHlb stock due to restrictions placed on its transferability.   

notes to Consolidated finanCial statements
(Dollar and share amounts in thousands except per share data)
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Loans
fair values of loans, excluding loans held for sale, are estimated as follows:  for variable rate loans that reprice frequently and 
with no significant change in credit risk, fair values are based on carrying values.  fair values for other loans are estimated 
using discounted cash flow analyses, using interest rates currently being offered for loans with similar terms to borrowers of 
similar credit quality.  Impaired loans are valued at the lower of cost or fair value as described previously.  The methods 
utilized to estimate the fair value of loans do not necessarily represent an exit price. 

deposits 
The fair values disclosed for demand deposits (e.g., interest and noninterest checking, passbook savings, and certain types of 
money market accounts) are, by definition, equal to the amount payable on demand at the reporting date (i.e., their carrying 
amount).  The carrying amounts of variable rate, fixed-term money market accounts and certificates of deposit approximate 
their fair values at the reporting date.  fair values for fixed rate certificates of deposit are estimated using a discounted cash 
flows calculation that applies interest rates currently being offered on certificates to a schedule of aggregated expected monthly 
maturities on time deposits.

other borrowings 
The fair values of the Company’s long-term borrowings are estimated using discounted cash flow analyses based on the 
current borrowing rates for similar types of borrowing arrangements.  

The fair values of the Company’s subordinated debentures are estimated using discounted cash flow analyses based on the 
current borrowing rates for similar types of borrowing arrangements. 

Accrued interest receivable/payable
The carrying amounts of accrued interest approximate fair value.

off-balance sheet instruments
fair values for off-balance sheet, credit-related financial instruments are based on fees currently charged to enter into similar 
agreements, taking into account the remaining terms of the agreements and the counter parties’ credit standing. The fair value of 
commitments is not material.

6. loan seRViCing: 
  Mortgage loans serviced for others are not reported as assets.  The principal balances of these loans were $20,055 and 
$19,494 at year-end 2015 and 2014.  The related capitalized mortgage servicing rights were not material for 2015 and 2014.  
Custodial escrow balances maintained in connection with serviced loans were $173 and $126 at year-end 2015 and 2014.

7. PRemises and equiPment:
 Year-end premises and equipment were as follows:   
  2015   2014 
 land $2,177 $2,177 
 building 12,493 12,465 
 furniture, fixtures and equipment  5,678  5,589 
 total cost 20,348 20,231 
 less: accumulated depreciation and amortization (9,710) (8,952) 
 premises and equipment, net $10,638 $11,279
 
 Depreciation expense was $859, $908, and $1,499 for 2015, 2014 and 2013

 In 2014 the Company sold two branch offices with a total cost of $273 and accumulated depreciation of $46 which resulted in 
a net loss of $126.

notes to Consolidated finanCial statements
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 The Company leases certain branch properties and equipment under operating leases.  Rent expense was $114, $87, and $95 
for 2015, 2014 and 2013.  Rent commitments under non cancelable operating leases, before considering renewal options that 
generally are present, were as follows:

 2016 $145 
 2017 146 
 2018 142 
 2019 91 
 2020 46 
 Thereafter - 
 total minimum 
 rental commitments         $570

8. intangiBle assets: 
  goodwill

Impairment exists when a reporting unit’s carrying value of goodwill exceeds its fair value. at october 31, 2015, our annual 
impairment analysis date, the Company's reporting unit had positive equity and the Company elected to perform a qualitative 
assessment to determine if it was more likely than not that the fair value of the reporting unit exceeded its carrying value, 
including goodwill. The qualitative assessment indicated that it was more likely than not that the fair value of the reporting 
unit exceeded its carrying value, resulting in no impairment.

 aCquiRed intangiBle assets
 Ther was no acquired intangible assets as of December 31, 2015 and $153 as of December 31, 2014.

 
9. dePosits:
 Time deposits that meet or exceed the federal Deposit Insurance limit of $250,000 at year-end 2015 and 2014 were $9,458 

and $11,127.
 
 scheduled maturities of time deposits were as follows:

 2016 $39,540
 2017 18,056
 2018 26,708
 2019 11,808
 2020 5,409
 Thereafter 22,509
 total time deposits  $124,030

 Included in deposits at year-end 2015 and 2014 is $32,910 and $36,836 that represent funds held in the bank by the Trust Department.

notes to Consolidated finanCial statements
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10. BoRRowings:
 lines of CRedit and fedeRal home loan Bank adVanCes
  The bank has lines of credit established with various financial institutions for overnight funding needs.  available credit under 

these lines was $2,506 and $3,395 on December 31, 2015 and 2014, with interest payable at the daily federal funds rate.  There were 
no borrowings on these lines as of December 31, 2015 and 2014.  additionally, the bank has a line of credit with the fHlb of 
Pittsburgh for its overnight funding needs with interest payable at the london Interbank offered Rates (lIboR) plus a 
margin.  The interest rate was 0.43% on December 31, 2015 and 0.27% on December 31, 2014.  The borrowing limit under 
this line of credit was $65,123 on December 31, 2015 and $65,123 on December 31, 2014.  The bank had $26,700 drawn on 
the line of credit at December 31, 2015 and $4,800 as of December 31, 2014.

 The bank has a long-term line of credit established with fHlb of Pittsburgh with a maximum borrowing capacity of $150,018 
and $133,604 as of December 31, 2015 and 2014.  The bank is required to maintain certain eligible assets as collateral.  The 
advances were collateralized by $225,739 and $193,669 of first mortgage loans and securities under a blanket lien arrangement 
at year-end 2015 and 2014.  The fHlb of Pittsburgh also has stock purchase requirements that are determined by the amount 
of borrowings outstanding.  each advance is payable at its maturity date or earlier with a prepayment penalty.

 
 at year-end, advances from the federal Home loan bank were as follows:

   2015  2014
   48 months interest only, 1.29% due 8/23/2015 $ - $2,000
   60 months interest only, 1.67% due 8/23/2016 2,000  2,000
   total Federal Home Loan bank advances $2,000 $4,000

11.  suBoRdinated deBentuRes: 
a trust formed by the Company issued $5,000 of floating rate trust preferred securities in 2003 as part of a pooled offering of 
such securities.  The interest rate adjusts quarterly to the three-month lIboR rate plus 2.95%.  The Company issued 
subordinated debentures to the trust in exchange for ownership of all of the common securities of the trust and the proceeds 
of the offering; the debentures represent the sole asset of the trust.  The Company became eligible to redeem the subordinated 
debentures, in whole but not in part, beginning in 2008 at a price of 100% of face value.  The subordinated debentures must be 
redeemed no later than 2033.  The interest rate on the subordinated debentures was 3.48% and 3.19% on December 31, 2015 
and 2014.

 
 a trust formed by the Company issued $4,000 of fixed rate trust preferred securities in 2005 as part of a pooled offering of 

such securities.  The Company issued subordinated debentures to the trust in exchange for ownership of all of the common 
securities of the trust and the proceeds of the offering; the debentures represent the sole asset of the trust.  The Company 
became eligible to redeem the subordinated debentures, in whole but not in part, beginning in 2010 at a price of 100% of face 
value.  The Company did not redeem the subordinated debentures and the rate converted to a floating rate of three month 
lIboR plus 1.54%.  The subordinated debentures must be redeemed no later than 2035.  The interest rate on the 
subordinated debentures was 2.05% and 1.78% on December 31, 2015 and 2014.

 Interest payments on the debentures may be deferred at any time at the election of the Company for up to 20 consecutive 
quarterly periods (5 years).  Interest on the debentures will accrue during the extension period, and all accrued principal and 
interest must be paid at the end of the extension period.  During an extension period, the Company may not declare or pay any 
dividends or distributions on, or redeem, purchase, acquire, or make a liquidation payment with respect to any of the 
Company’s capital stock.
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12. emPloyee Benefit Plans:
 PostRetiRement Benefits
  The Company has an unfunded postretirement benefit plan covering health insurance costs for certain retirees and postretirement 

life insurance benefits for substantially all of its full-time employees.  The postretirement health care plan includes a limit on the 
Company’s share of costs for retirees.  The Company used a December 31 measurement date for its plan.

  
 Information about changes in the Company’s obligation under the postretirement benefit plan follows:

Changes in postretirement benefit obligations 2015 2014
 beginning benefit obligation $170 $102
 service cost 4 5
 Interest cost 7 9
 actuarial (gain) loss (12) 57
 benefit paid (3) (3)
 ending benefit obligation $166 $170
 
The plan is unfunded, so the funded status of the plan was ($166) at December 31, 2015 and ($170) at December 31, 2014. 

Components of net periodic postretirement benefit costs and other amounts recognized in other comprehensive income:

  2015 2014 2013
 service cost $4 $5 $4
 Interest cost 7 9 4
 amortization of prior service (income) cost - (4) (4)
 amortization of net (gain) loss - - (3)
 net periodic benefit (income) cost 11 10 1
 net (gain) loss recognized in other comprehensive income 12 61 -
 total recognized in net periodic benefit cost and other 
      comprehensive income $23 $71 $1 
 
 The accumulated postretirement benefit obligation was $166 and $170 at year-end 2015 and 2014.

 The discount rate used to determine the benefit obligations was 4.25% at December 31, 2015 and 4.00% at December 31, 2014. 

 The benefit offered under this plan is fixed, therefore, the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation is not impacted by 
health care cost trends or the rate of compensation increase.

estimated Future payments
 The following benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, are expected:

 2016 $9
 2017 9
 2018 9
 2019 9
 2020 9
 following five years 47

 
 The estimated net gain and prior service cost for the postretirement that will be amortized from accumulated other 

comprehensive income into net periodic benefit costs during the year-ending December 31, 2016 are ($7) and ($3).
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401(k) Plan
a 401(k) benefit plan allows employees’ contributions up to 50% of their compensation, which are matched equal to 50% of the 
first 6% of the compensation contributed.  The Company’s matching contribution was $148, $139, and $138 in 2015, 2014, and 
2013.  In addition, the board of Directors authorized a profit sharing contribution of $234, $203, and $183 in 2015, 2014, and 
2013.  The combined contributions represent the Company’s expense under the plan in each year presented.

suPPlemental exeCutiVe RetiRement Plan (seRP)
In 2005, the Company entered into seRP agreements with certain officers.  In 2008, the legal form of these arrangements was  
changed such that it is now considered to be a retirement plan.  Under the terms of the plan, certain officers of the Company are 
entitled to a fixed annual benefit for a period of fifteen years following his or her retirement or termination other than for cause.  
In December 2014, the defined benefit plan was frozen which will eliminate payments for future service cost.  In 2015 the 
defined benefit plan was replaced by a defined contribution plan.  The Company will contribute a deferred bonus to certain 
officers based on the performance of the Company as compared to the median performance of the Compensation Peer Group.  
In 2015 the Company contributed $103 to the plan.
  
Due to changes in status of these obligations of the Company from individual arrangements to a plan, the Company began   
accounting for these benefits in the aggregate.  
  
Information about the Company’s obligation under the seRP follows:

Changes in projected benefit obligation 2015 2014  
         beginning benefit obligation $2,901 $2,440  
         service cost - 141  
         Interest cost 114 115  
         Distribution - - 
         actuarial (gain) loss (104) 205 
         ending benefit obligation $2,911 $2,901  

 The plan is unfunded, so the funded status of the plan was ($2,911) and ($2,901) at December 31, 2015 and 2014.

 amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income consist, pre-tax of $159 and $263 in net actuarial losses at   
 year-end 2015 and 2014.

 The accumulated benefit obligation was $3,070 and $3,164 at December 31, 2015 and 2014.
 
 Components of net periodic pension costs and other amounts recognized in other comprehensive income:

  2015 2014 2013
 service cost $ - $141 $198
 Interest cost 114 115 98
 amortization of net (gain) loss - - 20
 net periodic pension cost 114 256 316
  net (gain) loss  (104) 205 (308)
 total recognized in net periodic benefit cost 
 and other comprehensive income $10 $461 $8
  
 The discount rate used to determine the benefit obligations was 4.25% at December 31, 2015 and 4.00% at December 31, 2014. 
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estimated Future payments
 The following benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, are expected:

 2016 $131
 2017 131
 2018 131
 2019 131
 2020 177
 following five years 1,320

annual inCentiVe ComPensation Plan
During 2015 the Company established an annual incentive compensation plan for certain executive offcers.  The Company 
will contribute additional compensation based on the overall performance of the Company.  The Company contributted $49 
to the plan in 2015.

13.  inCome taxes:
 Income tax expense was as follows:

   2015 2014 2013
Current federal $1,108   $873 $293
Deferred federal (113) 101 305
total tax expense $995 $974   $598
    

 effective tax rates differ from federal statutory rate of 34% applied to income before income taxes due to the following:

   2015 2014 2013
federal statutory rate times financial statement income $1,471 $1,413 $1,062

 effect of:
 Tax-exempt income (337) (376) (401)
 Income from bank owned life insurance (156) (80) (80)
 other, net 17 17 17
total federal income tax $995 $974 $598
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Year-end deferred tax assets and liabilities were due to the following:

deferred tax assets 2015 2014
 nonaccrual loan interest $8 $15
 allowance for loan losses 854 682
 employee retirement benefits 63 60
 Deferred compensation 1,116 1,053
 Recognition of the funded status - seRP 54 89
 Unrealized loss on interest rate swap  22 51
 other - -
deferred tax assets 2,117 1,950

deferred tax liabilities
 Recognition of over funded postretirement plan (6) (2)
 loan origination costs (350)  (314)
 Depreciation and amortization (2,728)  (2,627)
 Prepaid expenditures (48) (48)
 net unrealized gain on securities available for sale (250) (376)
 other (89) (108)
deferred tax liabilities (3,471) (3,475)
 net deferred tax liabilities ($1,354) ($1,525)

The were no interest and penalties recorded in the income statement for the years-ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013.    
The Company does not have any unrecognized tax benefits at December 31, 2015 or 2014.

The Company is subject only to federal income taxes and is no longer subject to examination by federal taxing authorities for 
the tax year 2013 and the prior years.  

14. Related PaRty tRansaCtions:
loans to principal officers, directors and their affiliates in 2015 and 2014 were as follows: 

   2015 2014
 balance at beginning of year $4,726 $3,012
 new loans 4,494 118
 effects of changes in related parties   154  2,181
 Repayments                                                                                    (1,581)  (585)
 ending balance $7,793 $4,726

Deposits from principal officers, directors, and their affiliates at year-end 2015 and 2014 were $1,034 and $924. The 
Company conducted business with certain directors or entities which they are associated.  The Company paid $14, $18 and 
$2 to these entities of the Directors during 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

notes to Consolidated finanCial statements
(Dollar and share amounts in thousands except per share data)
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15. RegulatoRy  CaPital  matteRs:
  banks and bank holding companies are subject to regulatory capital requirements administered by federal banking agencies.  

Capital adequacy guidelines and, additionally for banks,  prompt corrective action regulations, involve quantitative measures of 
assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance sheet items calculated under regulatory accounting practices.  Capital amounts and 
classifications are also subject to qualitative judgments by regulators.  failure to meet capital requirements can initiate 
regulatory action.  The final rules implementing basel Committee on banking supervision's capital guidelines for U.s. banks 
(basel III rules) became effective for the company on January 1, 2015 with full compliance with all of the requirements being 
phased in over a multi-year schedule, and fully phased in by January 1, 2019.  The net unrealized gain or loss on available for 
sale securities is not included in computing regulatory capital. 

  
 Capital amounts and ratios for December 31, 2014 are calculated using basel I rules.  Management believes as of December 31, 

2015, the Company and bank meet all capital adequacy requirements to which they are subject.

 Prompt corrective action regulations provide five classifications: well capitalized, adequately capitalized, undercapitalized, 
significantly undercapitalized, and critically undercapitalized, although these terms are not used to represent overall financial 
condition.  If adequately capitalized, regulatory approval is required to accept brokered deposits.  If undercapitalized, capital 
distributions are limited, as is asset growth and expansion, and capital restoration plans are required.  at year-end 2015 and 
2014, the most recent regulatory notifications categorized the bank as well capitalized under the regulatory framework for 
prompt corrective action.  There are no conditions or events since that notification that management believes have changed 
the institution’s category. 

 actual and required capital amounts and ratios at year-end for the bank are presented below:
   to be Well

  For Capital  Capitalized under

  Adequacy  prompt Corrective

  Actual purposes  Action provisions

 2015 Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
  Total capital (to risk weighted assets)  $50,618 15.67% $25,848 8.00% $32,310 10.00%

 Tier 1 (core) capital (to risk weighted assets)  47,393 14.67% 19,386 6.00% 25,848 8.00%

 Common Tier 1 (core) capital  47,393 14.67% 14,540 4.50% 21,002 6.50%

 Tier 1 (core) capital (to average assets)  47,393 10.91% 17,381 4.00% 21,726 5.00%

 
 2014
 Total capital (to risk weighted assets)  $47,860 17.00% $22,529 8.00% $28,161 10.00%
 Tier 1 (core) capital (to risk weighted assets)  44,563 15.82% 11,264 4.00% 16,897 6.00%
  Tier 1 (core) capital (to average assets)  44,563 10.51% 16,957 4.00% 21,196 5.00%
  
  The Company’s principal source of funds for dividend payments is dividends received from the bank.  banking regulations limit 

the amount of dividends that may be paid without prior approval of regulatory agencies.  Under these regulations, the amount of 
dividends that may be paid in any calendar year is limited to the current year’s net profits, combined with the net profits of the 
preceding two years, subject to the capital requirements described above.  During 2015, the bank could, without prior approval, 
declare dividends of approximately $3,895 plus any 2015 net profits retained to the date of dividend declaration.
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16. inteRest Rate swaPs:
 The Company uses interest rate swap agreements as part of its asset liability management strategy to help manage its interest 

rate risk position.  The notional amount of the interest rate swaps does not represent amounts exchanged by the parties.  The 
amount exchanged is determined by reference to the notional amount and the other terms of the individual interest rate swap 
agreements.

 Interest Rate swaps Designated as Cash flow Hedges:  In 2008, the Company entered into an interest rate swap agreement 
with a notional amount of $5,000 which was designated as a cash flow hedge of the Company’s interest payments on its 
$5,000 subordinated debenture issued in 2003.  The term of the interest rate swap ended in september 2011.  In 2010, the 
Company entered into a forward-starting interest rate swap with a notional amount of $5,000 also designated as a cash flow 
hedge of the Company’s interest payments on its $5,000 subordinated debentures.  The term of this swap began in March 
2012 and continues until september 2016.  by entering into the forward starting swap the Company was able to effect 
uninterrupted cash flow hedge treatment.  each of the interest rate swaps was determined to be fully effective during the 
periods presented.  Therefore, the aggregate fair value of the swap is recorded in other assets (liabilities) with changes in the 
fair value recorded in other comprehensive income (loss).  The amount included in accumulated other income (loss) would 
be reclassified to current earnings should the hedge no longer be considered effective.  The Company expects the hedge to 
remain fully effective during the remaining term of the swap.

   

 summary information about the interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges as of year-end is as follows:

              2015                     2014
   notional amount      $5,000                 $5,000
   Pay rates            2.50%                    2.50%
   Receive rates           0.61%                     0.23%
   Maturity in months                 9       21 
   Unrealized gains (losses)            (64)                       (152)

17. loan Commitments and otheR Related aCtiVities:
 some financial instruments, such as loan commitments, credit lines, and letters of credit, are issued to meet customer 

financing needs. These are agreements to provide credit or to support the credit of others, as long as conditions established in 
the contract are met, and usually have expiration dates.  Commitments may expire without being used.  off-balance sheet risk 
to credit loss exists up to the face amount of these instruments, although material losses are not anticipated.  The same credit 
policies are used to make such commitments as are used for loans, including obtaining collateral at exercise of the 
commitment.

 The contractual amount of financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk was as follows at year-end:

   2015 2014
  Fixed Rate variable Rate fixed Rate Variable Rate
 Commitments to make loans $9,927 $11,426 $1,453 $13,877
 Unused lines of credit 4,415 54,486 1,775 54,053 

  Commitments to make loans are generally made for periods of 60 days or less.  The fixed rate loan commitments have tax 
equivalent interest rates ranging from 2.50% to 9.00% and maturities ranging from 1 year to 15 years except for personal lines 
of credit which carry a fixed rate of 15.00%.
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18. PaRent ComPany only Condensed finanCial infoRmation:

 Condensed BalanCe sheets  as of December 31, 2015 and 2014
 
 Assets 2015 2014 
  Cash and cash equivalents $1,050 $856 
  Investment in banking subsidiary 55,453 53,153 
  other assets 7 -
 total assets  $56,510 $54,009  

 Liabilities and shareholders’ equity 
  subordinated debentures $9,000 $9,000 
  accrued expenses and other liabilities 575 478
  shareholders’ equity 46,935 44,531
 total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $56,510 $54,009

Condensed statements of inCome  Years-ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 
 
   2015 2014 2013 
Dividends from subsidiary $6,916 $1,553 $789
Interest income 1 1  1
Interest expense (351) (348) (350)
other expense (57) (57) (47)
income before income tax and undistributed subsidiary income 6,509 1,149 393
Income tax benefit 138 137 134
equity in undistributed net income of subsidiary (3,316) 1,897 1,998
net income $3,331 $3,183 $2,525
 
Comprehensive income $3,220 $3,525 $711

notes to Consolidated finanCial statements
(Dollar and share amounts in thousands except per share data)
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Condensed statements of Cash flows  Years-ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013
 
Cash flows from operating activities 2015 2014 2013
 net income $3,331 $3,183 $2,525
 adjustments 
  equity in undistributed net income of subsidiary 3,316 (1,897) (1,998)
  Changes in other assets 27 51 57
  Changes in other liabilities 7 9 1
  net cash from operating activities 6,681 1,346 585
 
Cash flows from investing activities
  Investment in subsidiaries (5,671) - - 
  net cash from investing activities (5,671) - - 

Cash flows from financing activities 
  Repayment or preferred stock (10,000) - -
  Proceeds from issuance of common stock, net of issuance costs 10,786 - -
  Cash dividends paid (1,602) (1,325) (1,390)
  net cash from financing activities  (816) (1,325) (1,390)
  net change in cash and cash equivalents 194 21 (805)
  beginning cash and cash equivalents 856 835 1,640
ending cash and cash equivalents $1,050 $856 $835

19. eaRnings PeR Common shaRe:
 The factors used in the earnings per share computation follow: 

 
 2015 2014 2013
basic 
net income $3,331 $3,183 $2,525
Preferred stock dividend  94 100 166 
net income available to common shareholders $3,237 $3,083 $2,359
 
Weighted average common shares outstanding 1,132 995 995

basic earnings per common share $2.86 $3.10 $2.37

 The Company's capital structure contains no potentially dilutive instruments.

notes to Consolidated finanCial statements
(Dollar and share amounts in thousands except per share data)
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20. aCCumulated otheR ComPRehensiVe inCome (loss)
The following is changes in accumulated other Comprehensive Income (loss) by component, net of tax, for the year-ending 
December 31, 2015 and 2014:
 Unrealized   
 Gain and loss Gain and loss  
 on available for on Cash flow Postretirement 
december 31, 2015 sale securities Hedge Plans Total
begining balance  $731 ($100) ($170) $461        
other Comprehensive Income before reclassification   (195) 58 77 (60)        
amounts reclassified from accumulated other 
            comprehensive income  (51) - - (51)        
net current period other comprehensive income (loss)  (246) 58 77 (111) 
ending balance   $485 ($42) ($93) $350
 
 Unrealized   
 Gain and loss Gain and loss  
 on available for on Cash flow Postretirement 
December 31, 2014 sale securities Hedge Plans Total
begining balance  $271 ($158) $6 $119
other Comprehensive Income before reclassification   532 58 (174) 416
amounts reclassified from accumulated other 
            comprehensive income  (72) - (2) (74)
net current period other comprehensive income (loss)  460 58 (176) 342 
ending balance  $731 ($100) ($170) $461 

The following is significant amounts reclassified out of each component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) and 
their respective impact on net income for the year-ending December 31, 2015: 

details about Accumulated other Amount Affected Line item in the statement
Comprehensive income Components Reclassified Where net income is presented
Unrealized gain and loss on available for sale securities   $78 net gains on sale of securities   
 78  Total before income taxes   
 (27) Income tax expense    
 $51  net of tax     
 total reclassifications for the period  $51  net of tax  

The following is significant amounts reclassified out of each component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) and 
their respective impact on net income for the year-ending December 31, 2014: 

Details about accumulated other amount affected line Item in the statement
Comprehensive Income Components Reclassified Where net Income is Presented
Unrealized gain and loss on available for sale securities   $109  net gains on sale of securities   
 109  Total before income taxes   
 (37) Income tax expense    
 $72  net of tax     
Postretirement Plans
actuarial gain (loss)  $4 salaries and employee benefits expense
 4  Total before income taxes   
 (2)   Income tax benefit    
 2  net of tax     
Total reclassifications for the period  $74   net of tax 

notes to Consolidated finanCial statements
(Dollar and share amounts in thousands except per share data)
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21. PRefeRRed stoCk:
 on august 23, 2011, the Company entered into a securities Purchase agreement (sblf agreement) with the United states  
 Department of the Treasury (Treasury).   Under the sblf agreement, the Company issued 10 shares of senior non-   
 cumulative  Perpetual Preferred stock series a (Preferred stock) to the Treasury, having a liquidation value of $1,000 per  
 share, for the aggregate  proceeds of $10 million.  The issuance qualifies as Tier 1 capital.

 The issuance was pursuant to the U.s. Treasury's sblf program, a $30 billion fund established under the  small business Jobs  
 act of  2010, which encourages lending to small businesses by providing capital to qualified community banks  with assets less  
 than ten  billion dollars.  The Preferred stock is entitled to receive non-cumulative dividends payable quarterly  on each  
 January 1, april 1, July 1 and october 1,  beginning october 1, 2011.  The dividend rate was initially set at 1% per annum  
 based upon the level of Qualified small business lending (Qsbl) by the  bank.  The dividend rate for future periods will be  
 set based upon the percentage change in qualified lending between each  dividend period and the baseline Qsbl level  
 established at the time the sblf  agreement was entered into.  such dividend rate  may vary from 1% per annum to 5% per  
 annum for the second through tenth  dividend periods and will become a fixed rate between 1% per annum to 7% per annum  
 for the eleventh through the eighteenth  dividend periods.  If the Preferred stock remains outstanding  beyond february 23,  
 2016 the dividend rate will be fixed at 9%.  Prior  to that time, the dividend rate is based on the activity and volume of the  
 bank's Qsbl as defined in the sblf agreement.  such dividends  are not cumulative, but the Company may only declare and  
 pay dividends on its common shares if it has declared and paid dividends  for the current dividend period on the Preferred  
 stock, and will be subject to other restrictions on its ability to repurchase or redeem other securities.  

 The following table summarizes the annual dividend rate for each quarterly period ending:

   2015 2014
  January 1 1.00% 1.00%
  april 1 1.00% 1.00%
  July 1 1.00% 1.00%
  october 1 1.00% 1.00%

 The holders of the Preferred stock have the right to vote on matters relating to the rights of the holders of Preferred stock.

 The Company may redeem the shares of Preferred stock, in whole or in part, at any time at a redemption price equal to the  
 sum of the liquidation amount and the per-share amount of any unpaid dividends for the then-current period, subject to any 
 required prior approval by the Company's primary federal banking regulator.

 on March 31, 2015 the Company redeemed $5,000 of the preferred stock and on october 31, 2015 the remainder was  
 redeemed from the U.s. Treasury.   

22. shaReholdeRs' equity
In september 2015, the Company successfully completed the sale of $11.7 million private placement of the Company's 
common stock by issuing 450,000 shares to accredited investors at a purchase price of $26.00 per share.  Proceeds to the 
Company were $10.8 million, net of offering costs of $914 thousand. The board of Directors authorized the Company to 
contribute $6.8 million of the proceeds to the bank as equity. 
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indePendent auditoR's RePoRt    
    
 board of Directors and shareholders 
 CbT financial Corp. 
 Clearfield, Pennsylvania 
 
Report on the Financial statements 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of CbT financial Corp., which comprise the consolidated 
balance sheets as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, 
changes in shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2015, and the 
related notes to the financial statements.

management’s Responsibility for the Financial statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United states of america; this includes the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our 
audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United states of america.  Those standards require that 
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from 
material misstatement.

an audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated 
financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, 
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  accordingly, we express no such opinion.  an audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position 
of CbT financial Corp. as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three 
years in the period ended December 31, 2015 in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United states 
of america.
       

        

         Crowe Horwath llP
livingston, new Jersey
february 5, 2016

Crowe horwath llP
Independent Member Crowe Horwath International
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management’s disCussion and analysis 

 oVeRView 
  The following discussion and analysis of the consolidated financial statements of CbT financial Corp. (Company) is 

presented to provide insight into Management's assessment of the Company’s financial results.  The Company’s subsidiary, 
Clearfield bank & Trust Company (bank), provides financial services through its twelve community offices in Clearfield, 
blair, Centre and Huntingdon Counties, Pennsylvania.  Its primary deposit products are checking, savings, and term certificate 
accounts, and its primary lending products are residential mortgage, commercial, and consumer installment loans.  
substantially all loans are secured by specific items of collateral including business assets, consumer assets, and commercial 
and residential real estate.  Commercial loans are expected to be repaid from cash flow from operations of businesses.  other 
financial instruments, which potentially represent concentrations of credit risk, include deposit accounts in other financial 
institutions and federal funds sold.  The bank also operates a full service Trust Department that provides various trust 
services, including trust and estate planning.  Diamond financial services, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of the bank, is a 
Pennsylvania corporation that sells mutual funds and annuities.  Management’s discussion and analysis represents an 
evaluation of the Company’s consolidated balance sheet and results of operations. The amounts in this Management's 
Discussion and analysis are not audited and should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and 
related notes.

 foRwaRd-looking statements
 The following financial review presents an analysis of the assets and liability structure of the Company and a discussion of the 

results of operations for each of the periods presented in this annual report of liquidity, capital, and credit quality.  Certain 
statements in this report that relate to CbT financial Corp.’s plans, objectives, or future performance may be deemed to be 
forward-looking statements.  such statements are based on Management's current expectations.  actual strategies and results 
in future periods may differ materially from those currently expected because of various risks and uncertainties. 

 among the important facts that could cause actual results to differ materially are changes in interest rates, changes in the mix 
of the Company’s business, competitive pressures on deposit and loan pricing, general economic conditions, asset quality and 
other risk factors. 

 BalanCe sheet 
    assets at December 31, 2015 totaled $455,559,000 compared to $431,710,000 at December 31, 2014, an increase of 

$23,849,000 or 5.5%.  Total loans now make up approximately 75.9% of the assets compared to 69.1% at year-end 2014.  
 
 seCuRities 
  The securities portfolio declined by $22,554,000 or 23.6%, from $95,743,000 at December 31, 2014 to $73,189,000 at 

December 31, 2015, and represents 16.1% of total assets.  Proceeds from the sale, maturity, and repayment of securities that 
were not reinvested in loans were reinvested into state and municipal securities to create additional tax exempt income.  

 
 loans 
  Total loans increased 15.9% from $298,474,000 at December 31, 2014 to $345,925,000 at December 31, 2015.  average loans 

increased from $289.6 million in 2014 to $314.3 million in 2015.  The loan portfolio was influenced by local demand for 
small business loans and home equity loans. 

 Commercial loans, commercial real estate loans and construction loans totaled $227,762,000 at December 31, 2015, an  
 increase of $40,514,000 or 21.6% from $187,248,000 at December 31, 2014.  These loans accounted for 65.8% of total loans  
 at December 31, 2015.

  Consumer and credit card loans totaled $14,448,000 at December 31, 2015, increasing from $12,927,000 at December 31, 
2014.  at December 31, 2015, consumer loans represented 4.2% of the loan portfolio. 
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 Mortgage loans totaled $103,715,000 at December 31, 2015, an increase of $5,486,000 or 5.6% from the prior year.  The bank  
 has continued to maintain a strategy of selling a majority of the fixed rate loan production in order to minimize the investment  
 in long-term, fixed rate assets that have the potential to expose the Company to long-term interest rate risk.  Mortgage loans  
 accounted for 30.0% of total loans at December 31, 2015. 

 nonPeRfoRming assets  
  nonperforming assets consist of loans past due greater than 90 days, nonaccrual loans and foreclosed assets.  There were no 

loans 90 days past due and still accruing interest on December 31, 2015 and 2014.  nonperforming assets totaled $1,115,000 
at December 31, 2015 compared to $1,275,000 on December 31, 2014.  at December 31, 2015, nonperforming assets 
consisted of $557,000 in nonaccrual loans and $558,000 in foreclosed assets.  at December 31, 2014, nonperforming assets 
consisted of $1,275,000 in nonaccrual loans.  The decrease in nonperforming assets was primarily due to the decrease in 
nonaccrual loans and offset by the increase in foreclosed assets.  The ratio of allowance for loan losses to nonperforming loans 
was 288.7% at December 31, 2015 compared to 258.2% at December 31, 2014.  nonperforming assets as a percentage of total 
assets were 0.24% at December 31, 2015 compared to 0.30% on December 31, 2014.

 PRoVision and allowanCe foR loan losses 
  The provision for loan losses represents the charge to income necessary to adjust the allowance for loan losses to an amount 

that represents Management's assessment for probable incurred credit losses in the loan portfolio that have been identified.    
all lending activity contains credit risk.  at December 31, 2015 the allowance for loan losses totaled 0.93% of loans 
outstanding and in 2014 the allowance for loan losses totaled 1.10% of loans outstanding.  During 2014 the Company 
received a large recovery of a previously charged off commercial loan.  as a result there was a net recovery of $434,000 in 2014 
compared to a net charge off of $548,000 for 2015.  The provision for loan losses was $475,000 in 2015 compared to a 
negative $250,000 in 2014.  The 2014 negative provision was primarily a result of the aforementioned loan recovery.

   Management analyzes the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses monthly through reviews of the performance of the loan 
portfolio considering economic conditions, changes in interest rates and the effect of such changes on real estate values, 
changes in the composition of the loan portfolio, and trends in past due and nonperforming loans.  The allowance for loan 
losses is a material estimate that is particularly susceptible to significant changes in the near term and is established through a 
provision for loan losses based on Management's evaluation of the risk probable incurred risk in the Company’s loan portfolio 
and the general economy.  such evaluation, which includes a review of all loans for which full collectibility may not be 
reasonably assured, considers the estimated fair value of the underlying collateral, economic conditions, historic loan loss 
experience and other factors that management believes warrants recognition in providing for an adequate loan loss allowance.  
Management believes that the allowance for loan losses was adequate at December 31, 2015 and 2014.

 dePosits 
  Total deposits were $364,140,000 at December 31, 2015, an increase of $1,046,000 or 0.3%, compared to $363,094,000 at
 December 31, 2014.  noninterest-bearing checking accounts increased $6,687,000 to $67,321,000; savings deposits increased  
 by $629,000 to $178,430,000; and certificates of deposit decreased $6,270,000 to $124,030,000.  noninterest-bearing  
 checking accounts represented 18.5% of deposits at December 31, 2015 compared to 16.7% at December 31, 2014.  Total  
 certificates of deposit represented 34.1% of deposits at December 31, 2015 compared to 35.9% at December 31, 2014.  

 otheR BoRRowings 
  Total borrowings increased $19,900,000 to $37,700,000 at December 31, 2015.  The increase in borrowings is the result of 

loan demand increasing faster than deposit growth.  The Company monitors borrowings as part of its liquidity management, 
cash flow and asset liability management.  future borrowing commitments will depend on these factors and other changes in 
the balance sheet.
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 shaReholdeRs’ equity 
  Total shareholders’ equity at December 31, 2015 totaled $46,935,000 compared to $44,531,000 at December 31, 2014, an 

increase of 5.4%.  The Company issued 450,000 shares of common stock which resulted in $10,786,000 in common equity.  
In addition the Company repaid the $10,000,000 in preferred stock.  The changes in shareholders’ equity were affected by the  
net income of $3,331,000, a decrease in other comprehensive income of $111,000 offset by cash dividends declared of 
$1,508,000.

 The Company has evaluated the impact of the basel III capital requirements that took effect in 2015 and the Company  
 remained well capitalized under these new requirements.

 Results of oPeRations 
   The Company recorded net income in 2015 of $3,331,000, an increase of 4.6% or $148,000, from net income of $3,183,000 

in 2014.  net income available to common shareholders increased 5.0% to $3,237,000.  earnings per common share for 2015 
were $2.86 compared to $3.10 for 2014.  This decline on a per common share basis was a result in the increase number of 
shares outstanding.   for 2015, the return on average equity (Roae) was 8.24% compared to 9.16% for 2014 and the return 
on average assets (Roaa) was 0.77% for 2015 and 0.73% for 2014.

 net inteRest inCome 
  net interest income, the primary source of the Company’s earnings, represents the difference between interest income on 
 interest-earning assets and interest expense on interest-bearing liabilities.

  Interest income increased $290,000 from $15,564,000 in 2014 to $15,854,000 in 2015.  Interest income on securities 
decreased $427,000 and totaled $1,609,000 for 2015 compared to $2,036,000 for 2014.  The average balance of the securities 
portfolio decreased $12.9 million, from $95.3 million in 2014 to $82.4 million in 2015, there was also a 17 basis point 
decrease in the average tax equivalent yield on the securities portfolio to 2.40%.  Interest income on loans totaled $14,147,000 
in 2015 compared to $13,449,000 in 2014, an increase of $698,000.  average loans increased from $289.6 million in 2014 to 
$314.2 million in 2015 and the average tax equivalent yield on loans decreased 25 basis points to 4.55%.

  Interest income from other earning assets increased $19,000 from $79,000 in 2014 to $98,000 in 2015.  The yield on these 
funds increased from 0.04% in 2014 to 0.63% in 2015.

 While the decrease in asset yields was primarily due to a decline in market interest rates and the repricing of assets, this was  
 partially offset by the increase in higher yielding loans.  During 2015, management continued to focus on floating rate and  
 shorter duration loans and securities to better position the bank to take advantage of increasing rates expected in the future.   
 This resulted in slightly lower yields than would have been achieved if we focused on longer duration loans and securities.

  Interest expense for 2015 was $2,072,000, a decrease of $203,000 or 8.9% from $2,275,000 for 2014.  average interest-bearing 
liabilities decreased $6.4 million and the average rate paid on interest-bearing liabilities decreased by 5 basis points.  Interest 
expense on deposits decreased $220,000 from $1,866,000 in 2014 to $1,646,000 in 2015.  The decrease in interest expense on 
deposits was primarily due to a decrease in the average cost of interest-bearing deposits from 0.60% in 2014 to 0.55% in 2015, 
a decrease of 5 basis points.  average interest-bearing deposits decreased $11.4 million to $301.3 million.

 Interest expense on borrowed funds was $426,000 for 2015, an increase or $17,000 of 4.2% from 2014.  average borrowings  
 increased from $13.5 million in 2014 to $18.5 million in 2015 but the average cost of interest on borrowed funds decreased  
 from 3.04% in 2014 to 2.29% in 2015, a decrease of 75 basis points.

  net interest income for 2015 totaled $13,782,000 versus $13,289,000 for 2014, an increase of $493,000 or 3.7%.  net interest 
margin increased 6 basis points from 3.41% in 2014 to 3.47% in 2015. This was the result of the increase in the loan to deposit 
ratio.
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 noninteRest inCome   
  Total noninterest income increased in 2015 by $459,000 to $5,042,000 from $4,583,000 in 2014.  This is primarily the result 

of increased bolI income of $227,000 from a life insurance benefit. 

 noninteRest exPenses   
  Total noninterest expense for 2015 increased 0.4% or $58,000 to $14,023,000 from $13,965,000 in 2014.  The overall change 

is a result of an increases in salaries and employee benefits of $143,000 and an increase in data processing fees of $238,000.  
The increase in data processing fees is a because this is the first full year in shich the bank outsources this service.  These 
increaes are offset by decrease other expenses of $201,000.  Management continues to explore opportunities to reduce 
noninterest expense.

 maRket Risk 
  Important considerations in asset liability management are liquidity, the balance between interest rate sensitive assets and 

liabilities, and the adequacy of capital.  While liquidity management involves meeting the funding requirements of the 
Company, the management of interest rate sensitivity focuses on the structure of assets and liabilities with respect to maturity 
and repricing characteristics.  balancing interest rate sensitive assets and liabilities provides a means of tempering fluctuating 
interest rates and maintaining net interest margin through periods of changing interest rates.  The Company monitors interest 
rate sensitivity to determine the overall interest rate position over various time frames.

  The Company considers interest rate exposure to be its primary risk.  a simulation analysis is used to monitor the Company’s 
exposure to changes in interest rates, and the effect of the changes to net interest income.  The change in interest rates is 
measured in 1.00% increments up to 5.00%.  net interest income volatility measures the short-term (one and two year) effect 
of changes in interest rates.  The Company’s has guidelines that limits the amount of risk at an upward or downward change in 
interest rates.

 The model makes assumptions about cash flows and the reinvestment of these cash flows in different rate environments.   
 actual results could differ significantly from these estimates which would produce significant differences in the calculated  
 projected change in income.  In addition, there are strategies available to management that minimize the decline in income  
 caused by a rapid rise in interest rates.
 
 The following table shows the effect on net interest income volatility in the event of an immediate and sustained increase or  
 decrease in market interest rates:

  net Interest Income Volatility Results Results 
   Year 1  2015 2014  Guideline
   + 3.00%  -15.76% -16.21%  +/- 10.00%
   + 2.00% -8.21% -10.37%  +/-   7.50% 
   + 1.00%  -4.66% -4.94%  +/-   5.00%
   - 1.00% -2.65% -3.01%  +/-   5.00%

   net interest income volatility as a result of a 1.00% decrease in interest rates in year one complies with the internal limits 
established by the Company, but would result in a 2.65% decline in net interest income.  If interest rates were to increase 
1.00%, net interest income would decline by 4.66%.  This is within the bank’s guidelines of 5.00%.  a change in interest rate of 
2.00% or 3.00% exceeds the bank's risk guidelines of 7.50% and 10.00%, respectively.  Management continues to structure the 
balance sheet to reduce the risk associated with rising interest rates.  This is an ongoing process.   Interest rate sensitivity 

 management provides some degree of protection against net interest income volatility.  It is not possible or necessarily  
 desirable to attempt to eliminate the risk completely by matching interest sensitive assets and liabilities.
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2011
$17,044

3,632
13,412

900
12,512

4,335
13,182

3,665
777

2,888
36

$2,852

0.75%
9.53%

$2.87 
1.22

31.57

$115,120
251,860
405,461
344,905

41,388
148.875

2012
$16,749

3,281
13,468

875
12,593

4,951
13,491

4,053
916

3,137
100

$3,037

0.77%
9.32%

$3.05 
1.23

33.18

$94,563
268,065
418,124
355,476

43,010
185,210

2013
$16,010

2,816
13,194

350
12,844

4,790
14,511

3,123
598

2,525
166

$2,359

0.60%
7.15%

$2.37
1.23

32.51

$98,228
282,065
426,178
365,225

42,331
211,140

2014
$15,564

2,275
13,289

(250)
13,539

4,583
13,965

4,157
974

$3,183
100

$3,083

0.73%
9.16%

$3.10
1.23

34.71

$95,743
298,474
431,710
363,094

44,531
220,704

 2015
 $15,854
 2,072
 13,782
 475

13,307
5,042

14,023
4,326

995
 3,331
 94
 $3,237

0.77%
8.24%

 $2.86
 1.23
 32.47

 $73,189
 345,925
 455,559
 364,140
 46,935
 219,987

 quaRteRly shaRe data 
The common stock of CbT financial Corp. is traded on the oTC Pink under the symbol “CbTC.”  The Company’s common stock 
has historically traded on a limited basis in the over the counter market.  The following table sets forth, for the period indicated, the 
high and low sale price and dividends paid.  

 2015   dividends
 quarter ended High Low declared
 March 31 $29.75 $27.25 $.30
 June 30 30.25 27.26 .30
 september 30 29.75 26.00 .30
 December 31 29.75 26.00 .33 

 2014   Dividends
 Quarter ended High low Declared
 March 31 $31.00 $28.60 $.30
 June 30 30.48 28.60 .30
 september 30 33.80 27.50 .30

 December 31 31.45 27.00 .33   
While the Company expects to continue its policy of regular dividends, no assurance of future dividends can be given.  future dividend 
payments will depend upon the maintenance of a strong financial condition, future earnings, capital and regulatory requirements. 

statistiCal infoRmation
(Dollar and share amounts in thousands except per share data)

seleCted finanCial data

summary of earnings
     Interest and dividend income
     Interest expense
     net interest income
     Provision for loan losses
     net interest income after provision for loan losses
     noninterest income
     noninterest expense
     Income before income taxes
     Income tax expense 
     net income
     Preferred stock dividends
     net income available to common shareholders
 
Ratios
     Return on average assets
     Return on average shareholders’ equity
 
per common share data
     net income
     Dividends declared
     book value
 
At year-end
     securities
     loans
     Total assets
     Deposits
     shareholders’ equity
     Trust and financial services assets*

*not included in the consolidated assets of Cbt Financial Corp.



2015 ANNUAL REPORT TO SHAREHOLDERS

46

CBt finanCial CoRP. and CleaRfield Bank & tRust ComPany diReCtoRs

CBt finanCial CoRP. offiCeRs

william e. wood
Chairman, President & 
Chief executive officer

william a. shiner
secretary 

Richard w. ogden
Treasurer

michael J. Bibak
President

Paula m. Cherry
Partner, Gleason, Cherry and Cherry, llP

Charles R. Johnston 
Partner, Johnston, nelson, shimmel & Thomas, llP

andrew J. kohlhepp
Counselor, Transitions life Coaching & Counseling

michael R. lytle, dC
Chiropractor

kevin d. mcmillen
Regional Vice President, 
burns & burns associates, Inc.

marlene k. sample
Chairman, MsK Media

John g. soult, Jr.
Vice President, soult Wholesale Company

william e. wood
Chairman & Chief executive officer

Directors emeriti

george l. Beard
william l. Bertram
Barbara J. hugney-shope
Robert m. kurtz, Jr.
Ray s. walker

diamond finanCial seRViCes

william e. wood
Chairman, President & Chief executive officer

harold B. Baker
Vice President & Retail financial Program Manager

Richard w. ogden
Vice President & Treasurer

derek w. Border
assistant Vice President & Retail financial Program

nicholas t. Poulos
assistant Vice President & Retail financial Program

william a. shiner
secretary 
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eXecUtiVe oFFicers
william e. wood
Chairman & Chief executive officer

michael J. Bibak
President 

Richard w. ogden
executive Vice President, 
Chief financial officer & Treasurer

Judith k. mitchell
senior Vice President & Chief operating officer

william a. shiner
senior Vice President & secretary, 
Human Resources Manager & Chief Risk officer

dennis e. hampton
senior Vice President & 
Trust and Investment Division Manager 

glenn e. fisher
senior Vice President & Chief lending  officer

david m. mckeown
senior Vice President & operations Division Manager

CleaRfield Bank & tRust ComPany offiCeRs

oFFicers
timothy d. Clapper
Vice President & senior lending officer

tina m. Collins
Vice President & Comptroller

Valerie l. detwiler
Vice President & agricultural banking officer

kristi J. Johnson
Vice President & Mortgage loan Manager

Vicki J. myers
Vice President & Trust and Investment Management

Robert s. Ritchey
Vice President & Retail banking Manager

linda s. starr
Vice President & business banking officer

Janet m. strosky
Vice President & Trust and Investment Management

george m. weidlein
Vice President & Trust and Investment Management

tracy J. wilkinson
Vice President & Credit administration Manager

karen l. wriglesworth
Vice President & audit Manager

kay e. dell’ antonio
assistant Vice President & business banking officer

denise k. dixson
assistant Vice President & loan servicing Manager

Rudolph J. fusco
assistant Vice President & business banking officer

david a. hamilton
assistant Vice President & 
Information systems Manager

Robert a. holden, Jr.
assistant Vice President & 
Human Resources assistant Manager

lori a. kurtz
assistant Vice President & 
special assets/Collection Manager

sandra l. nelson
assistant Vice President & Training Manager

Christine a. spencer
assistant Vice President & operations Manager

Jennifer l. Vingless
assistant Vice President & Marketing officer

shelly k. folmar
assistant secretary & Human Resources specialist
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cLeArFieLD coUNtY

main offiCe
kathy l. Jacobson
assistant Vice President &  
Community office Manager

BRidge stReet offiCe

michele a. fannin
assistant Vice President &  
Community office Manager

CuRwensVille offiCe

debra k. Bowser
assistant Vice President &  
Community office Manager

duBois offiCe

Pamela s. walsh
Community office Manager 

goldenRod offiCe

kathy l. Jacobson
assistant Vice President & 
Community office Manager

PhiliPsBuRg offiCe

James n. Richtscheit
Community office Manager

BLAir coUNtY

williamsBuRg offiCe

Christin m. Conigy
Community office Manager

moRRisons CoVe offiCe

Cindy l. Brumbaugh
Community office Manager

ceNtre coUNtY
Pine gRoVe mills offiCe

James m. kane
Community office Manager

HUNtiNGDoN coUNtY

huntingdon downtown offiCe

Jackie a. Confer
assistant Vice President &
Community office Manager

huntingdon Plaza offiCe
Jackie a. Confer
assistant Vice President &
Community office Manager

mount union offiCe

daphne m. myers
Community office Manager

Community offiCes



(Dollar amounts in thousands except per share data)  *not included in the consolidated assets of cbt financial corp.

SUmmARy Of CONSOLidATEd STATEmENT Of iNCOmE 2015 2014
interest income  $15,854  $15,564 

interest expense  2,072  2,275 

net interest income  13,782  13,289 

Provision for loan losses  475  (250)

total noninterest income  5,042  4,583 

total noninterest expense  14,023  13,965 

income before income taxes  4,326  4,157 

income taxes  995  974 

net income  $3,331  $3,183 

Preferred stock dividends  94  100 

net income available to common shareholders  $3,237  $3,083 

RATiOS
Return on average assets (Roaa) 0.77% 0.73%

Return on shareholders' equity (RoaE) 8.24% 9.16%

PER ShARE dATA
net income  $2.86  $3.10 

cash dividend declared  1.23  1.23 

cash dividend paid  1.23  1.23 

book value  32.47  34.71 

SUmmARy Of CONSOLidATEd BALANCE ShEET (at year end)

Securities  $73,189  $95,743 

loans  345,925  298,474 

total assets  455,559  431,710 

Deposits  364,140  363,094 

Shareholders' equity  46,935  44,531 

trust and financial services assets*  219,987  220,704 

financial highlightS

Our mission at Clearfield Bank and Trust Company is to create an environment in which:

Our Customers perceive the Bank as a partner in achieving their financial goals;

Our Employees may achieve personal and professional success; and

Our Shareholders achieve the rewards of ownership.

BLAiR COUNTy
a  moRRiSonS covE

2287 Curryville Road • Martinsburg, PA 16662
T: 814-793-0912 • F: 814-793-0911

b  williamSbuRg
101 High Street • Williamsburg, PA 16693
T: 814-832-2128 • F: 814-832-2120

CENTRE COUNTy
c  PinE gRovE millS

511 Pine Grove Road • State College, PA 16801
T: 814-238-0578 • F: 814-238-1959

CLEARfiELd COUNTy
D  bRiDgE StREEt

204 Bridge Street • Clearfield, PA 16830
T: 814-765-1645 • F: 814-765-2672

E  cuRwEnSvillE
407 Walnut Street • Curwensville, PA 16833
T: 814-236-2441 • F: 814-236-4650

f  DuboiS
91 Beaver Drive • DuBois, PA 15801
T: 814-371-1400 • F: 814-371-2903

g  golDEnRoD
1935 Daisy Street • Clearfield, PA 16830
T: 814-768-5200 • F: 814-768-5206

h  main officE
11 North 2nd Street • Clearfield, PA 16830
T: 814-765-7551 • F: 814-765-2943

i  PhiliPSbuRg
19 Irwin Drive Extension • Philipsburg, PA 16866
T: 814-342-5750 • F: 814-342-7321

hUNTiNGdON COUNTy
J  huntingDon Downtown

500 Penn Street • Huntingdon, PA 16652
T: 814-643-8042 • F: 814-643-8088

K  huntingDon Plaza
9585 William Penn Hwy. • Huntingdon, PA 16652
T: 814-643-0350 • F: 814-643-8073

l  mount union
16 West Shirley Street • Mount Union, PA 17066
T: 814-542-2591 • F: 814-542-4074
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